Public Document Pack

SCRUTINY BOARD (CITY AND REGIONAL PARTNERSHIPS)
Meeting to be held in on
Thursday, 23rd October, 2008 at 10.00 am
(A pre-meeting will take place for ALL Members of the Board at 9.30 a.m.)
MEMBERSHIP
Councillors
B Atha S Bentley (Chair) C Campbell G Driver -

Weetwood
Otley and Yeadon
Middleton Park

C Fox -

Adel and Wharfedale

R Harington -

Gipton and Harehills

V Kendall J Lewis T Murray R Pryke A Shelbrooke L Yeadon -

Agenda compiled by:
Governance Services
Civic Hall
LEEDS LS1 1UR

Kirkstall

Andy Booth
24 74325

Roundhay
Kippax and Methley
Garforth and Swillington
Burmantofts and Richmond
Hill
Harewood
Kirkstall

Principal Scrutiny Advisor:
Richard Mills
Tel: 2474557
Produced on Recycled Paper

A

AGENDA

Item
No
1

Ward/Equal
Opportunities

Item Not
Open

Page
No
APPEALS AGAINST REFUSAL OF INSPECTION
OF DOCUMENTS
To consider any appeals in accordance with
Procedure Rule 25* of the Access to Information
Procedure Rules (in the event of an Appeal the
press and public will be excluded).
(* In accordance with Procedure Rule 25, notice of
an appeal must be received in writing by the Chief
Democratic Services Officer at least 24 hours
before the meeting).

2

EXEMPT INFORMATION - POSSIBLE
EXCLUSION OF THE PRESS AND PUBLIC
1

To highlight reports or appendices which
officers have identified as containing exempt
information, and where officers consider that
the public interest in maintaining the
exemption outweighs the public interest in
disclosing the information, for the reasons
outlined in the report.

2

To consider whether or not to accept the
officers recommendation in respect of the
above information.

3

If so, to formally pass the following
resolution:RESOLVED – That the press and public be
excluded from the meeting during
consideration of the following parts of the
agenda designated as containing exempt
information on the grounds that it is likely, in
view of the nature of the business to be
transacted or the nature of the proceedings,
that if members of the press and public were
present there would be disclosure to them of
exempt information, as follows:-

B

Item
No
3

Ward/Equal
Opportunities

Item Not
Open

Page
No
LATE ITEMS
To identify items which have been admitted to the
agenda by the Chair for consideration.
(The special circumstances shall be specified in
the minutes.)

4

DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST
To declare any personal / prejudicial interests for
the purpose of Section 81 (3) of the Local
Government Act 2000 and paragraphs 8 to 12 of
the Members Code of Conduct.

5

APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE
To receive any apologies for absence.

6

MINUTES OF THE PREVIOUS MEETING

1-6

To receive and approve the minutes of the
previous meeting held on 25 September 2008
7

SESSION 2 - VOLUNTARY COMMUNITY AND
FAITH SECTOR INQUIRY

7 - 12

To consider the attached report of the Head of
Scrutiny and Member Development
8

SESSION 1 - SKILLS INQUIRY

13 24

To consider the attached report of the head of
Scrutiny and Member Development
9

UPDATE AND BOARD'S WORKING GROUPS

25 34

To consider the attached report of the Head of
Scrutiny and Member Development

10

WORK PROGRAMME
To consider the attached report of the Head of
Scrutiny and Member Development

C

35 80

Item
No
11

Ward/Equal
Opportunities

Item Not
Open

Page
No
DATE AND TIME OF NEXT MEETING
Thursday, 20 November 2008 at 10.00 a.m. (Premeeting for all Members at 09.30 a.m.).

D

Agenda Item 6
SCRUTINY BOARD (CITY AND REGIONAL PARTNERSHIPS)
THURSDAY, 25TH SEPTEMBER, 2008
PRESENT:

Councillor S Bentley in the Chair
Councillors B Atha, C Campbell, G Driver,
C Fox, R Harington, J Lewis, T Murray and
L Yeadon

15

Late Items
There were no late items as such, and the Board was issued with draft terms
of reference for the proposed Inquiry into Skills that were agreed at a meeting
of the Skills Working Group held on 22 September 2008. Minutes of the
Working Group meeting were also distributed. This meeting took place after
the agenda despatch and these documents were therefore not available at the
time of agenda publication.

16

Declarations of Interest
Councillor Murray declared a personal and prejudicial interest in Agenda
Items 8 and 9, Inquiry into Voluntary, Community and Faith Sector and
Progress Report of the Board’s Working Groups due to his position as Chief
Executive of the Learning Partnership. He also declared a personal interest in
Agenda Item 9 due to his role as a governor of Thomas Danby College.
(Minutes no 20 and 21 refer).
Councillor Driver declared a personal interest in Agenda Items 8 and 9,
Inquiry into Voluntary, Community and Faith Sector and Progress Report of
the Board’s Working Groups due to his respective roles as Board Member of
Belle Isle Foundation and a governor of Thomas Danby College. (Minutes no
20 and 21 refer).
Councillor Fox declared a personal interest in Agenda Item 9, Progress
Report of the Board’s Working Groups due to his position as a governor at the
Leeds College of Technology. (Minute no. 21 refers).

17

Apologies for Absence
Apologies for absence were submitted on behalf of Councillors Kendall, Pryke
and Shelbrooke.

18

Minutes of the Previous Meeting
RESOLVED – That the minutes of the meeting held on 21 July 2008, be
confirmed as a correct record.
Draft minutes to be approved at the meeting
to be held on Thursday, 23rd October, 2008

Page 1

19

Regional Governance Arrangements
The Head of Scrutiny and Member Development submitted a report following
a request of the Board to be provided with information on current regional
governance arrangements. The report provided an overview of current
regional bodies and proposals for future arrangements including the process
of leading to a Single Integrated Regional Strategy for the region.
The Chair welcomed Catherine Hall, Senior Project Officer, Chief Executive’s
Department to the meeting.
The Board was informed of the Government’s Subnational Review of
Economic Development and Regeneration (SNR) and that a government
response to this review had been expected this week but no announcement
had been made at the time of today’s meeting. The intention of the SNR was
to introduce greater devolution and delegation to ensure decision making was
carried out at the right level; the subsidiarity principle. It was not anticipated
that the Government would be overly prescriptive in how governance
arrangements would be implemented within each region.
It was stressed that the outline detailed in the report on the transitional
arrangements post SNR were proposals from the region at this stage and that
this may change once the Government’s position becomes known.
In response to Members questions and comments, the following issues were
discussed:
•

•

•
•

•
•

Scrutiny arrangements at a parliamentary, regional and Leeds City
Region level. In respect of the Leeds City Region it was reported that
the Leeds City Region Leader’s Board, had considered 5 options for
scrutiny and it had opted to maintain the current arrangements of each
authority holding their own Leader to account for decisions made at the
Leaders’ Board but that this was to be reviewed in April 2009.
Financial Costs of the new arrangements and it was reported that
though this was not explicitly stated, it was envisaged that regional
changes would be cost neutral.
Democratic accountability.
Leeds City Council’s contribution to Local Government Yorkshire and
the Humber and the Yorkshire and Humber Regional Assembly and it
was reported that currently the contributions are £110k p.a. and £33k
p.a. respectively.
The process of developing the new integrated regional strategy and its
possible effect on individual wards.
Local Transport Bill and the decision of the Leeds City Region Leaders’
Board to initiate a review of transport governance arrangements in the
Leeds City Region in response to the Local Government transport Bill
and the proposed creation of integrated transport authorities.

The Chair thanked Catherine Hall for her attendance.
Draft minutes to be approved at the meeting
to be held on Thursday, 23rd October, 2008

Page 2

RESOLVED –
(1)
(2)

(3)

That the report be noted.
That the Principal Scrutiny Adviser arrange for Members of the
Board to be provided with a link to the minutes and agendas of the
Leeds City Regions Leaders’ Board.
That the Senior Project Officer provide the Board with information
on comparative scrutiny activity being undertaken in the Leeds City
Region.

(Councillor Lewis declared a personal interest in this item due to his members
hip of the Yorkshire and Humber Employers Committee).
20

Inquiry into Voluntary, Community and Faith Sector - Session 1
The Head of Scrutiny and Member Development submitted a report regarding
the Board’s Inquiry into the Voluntary Community and Faith Sector (VCFS).
Attached was the terms of reference for the inquiry along with a report of the
Chief Regeneration Officer which focussed on how the VCFS supported
Council engagement activity.
The Chair welcomed the following to the meeting:
•
•
•

Sue Wynne, Head of Regeneration, Policy and Planning, Environment
and Neighbourhoods
Keith
Lander,
Deputy
Area
Manager,
Environment
and
Neighbourhoods
Matthew Lund, Corporate Consultation Manager, Chief Executive’s
Unit

It was reported that there were over 3,000 VCFS organisations across Leeds
who all make a valuable contribution to services across the city. There was
however, concern that some organisations could be competing against each
other and instances of services being duplicated.
Sue Wynne addressed the meeting. She brought Members attention to
potential opportunities and challenges of working with the VCFS organisations
to enhance community engagement. A community engagement sub group
had been established which included representatives of Leeds Voice, Leeds
City Council and VCFS organisations. It was reported that there was a
diverse range of VCFS organisations which required a varying range of
resources and that the VCFS was encouraged to work collaboratively.
More work was planned with the VCFS to look at resourcing issues. There
had been significant changes to funding with the end of SRB and NRF funding
and there was a need to ensure that the VCFS was business ready for
commissioning activities.
In response to Members questions and comments, the following issues were
discussed:
Draft minutes to be approved at the meeting
to be held on Thursday, 23rd October, 2008

Page 3

•
•
•

•

•
•

•
•

Advice was available through the Council’s and Leeds Initiative’s
websites on funding and commissioning issues.
£109 million in financial assistance was provided in Leeds for VCFS
organisations. Members of the Board requested details..
Concern was expressed that some smaller organisations would not
have the capacity to compete under the commissioning process. It
was reported that the level of information required from organisations
would be appropriate for the level of funding and risk involved.
Area Management teams supported VCFS organisations of all sizes.
Support was available to assist with capacity building and also for new
organisations.
Monitoring of spending where grants have been made or services
commissioned.
How VCFS organisations could work together. An example of a
federation of voluntary organisations that operated in Hull was given
and the economic and empowerment advantages this brought.
Getting organisations to operate as social enterprises and the funding
available for this.
Matthew Lund explained his role and how the co-ordination of
engagement activity was being considered across Leeds. It was
suggested that he gave the ‘Talking Point’ presentation to the Board.

The Chair thanked those present for their attendance.
RESOLVED –
(1)
(2)

(3)

(4)

21

That the report be received as Session 1 of the Board’s inquiry.
That in accordance with Session 2 of the terms of reference for this
Inquiry the Director of Leeds Voice and a representative of a VCFS
organisation be invited to the next meeting of the Scrutiny Board
(City and Regional Partnerships) to discuss relevant issues using
case studies.
That Members of the Board be provided with a breakdown of the
financial assistance which the Council makes to the VCFS from the
latest audited approved accounts.
That the ‘Talking Point’ presentation be made at the pre meeting of
the Board on the 23rd October 2008.

Progress Report of the Board's Working Groups
The Head of Scrutiny and Member Development submitted a report which
gave Members a progress report on the Board’s Working Groups. Appended
to the report was a copy of the notes of the meeting of the Skills Working
Group held on 3 July 2008 and draft terms of reference for the Inquiry into
Skills were also distributed.
The Chair welcomed Rob Norreys, Head of Regional Policy to the meeting for
this item.
Draft minutes to be approved at the meeting
to be held on Thursday, 23rd October, 2008

Page 4

In brief summary the following issues were discussed:
Concern as to whether scrutinising the future of further education in
Leeds as part of the Skills Inquiry was appropriate as the
reorganisation was going ahead and it was too soon to examine the
outcome
• Inclusion of the Local Area Agreement (LAA) as part of the Board’s
inquiry.
RESOLVED –
•

(1)
(2)

22

That the progress report on the Board’s Working Groups be noted.
That the recommendations of the Board’s Working Group on terms
of reference for an Inquiry into Skills including the Local Area
Agreement be approved.

Work Programme
The Head of Scrutiny and Member Development submitted a report which
outlined the Board’s current Work Programme. Appended to the report were
the current Forward Plan of Key Decisions and the latest Executive Board
minutes.
It was reported that the Work Programme would be updated to take account
of the Inquiry into Skills and the Inquiry into the VCF Sector. Further
suggestions included the Local Transport Bill and potential re-organisation of
the West Yorkshire Passenger Transport Authority.
RESOLVED – That the report be noted and the Work Programme be
amended as appropriate.

23

Date and Time of Next Meeting
Thursday, 23 October at 10.00 a.m. (Pre-meeting for all Members at 09.30
a.m.)

Draft minutes to be approved at the meeting
to be held on Thursday, 23rd October, 2008

Page 5

This page is intentionally left blank

Page 6

Agenda Item 7
Originator:

Richard Mills

Tel:

247 4557

Report of the Head of Scrutiny and Member Development
Scrutiny Board (City and Regional Partnerships)
Date: 23rd October 2008
Subject: Inquiry into the Role of the Voluntary, Community and Faith Sector (VCFS) in
Council Led Engagement – Session 2
Electoral Wards Affected: All

Specific Implications For:

Equality and Diversity
Community Cohesion
Narrowing the Gap

Ward Members consulted
(referred to in report)

1.0 Introduction
1.1 The Board at its meeting on the 25th September completed Session 1 of its inquiry into
the role of the Voluntary, Community and Faith Sector (VCFS) in Council led community
engagement and a copy of the terms of reference approved by the Board is attached.
1.2 Members are reminded that whilst this inquiry involves a number of departments and
partners, the Director of Environment and Neighbourhoods is taking the lead role on this
issue.
2.0 Session 2 of the Board’s Inquiry
2.1 At today’s session Members will hear a VCFS perspective using case studies on:
•
The opportunities and barriers to participation with the Council and others.
•
Evidence from the VCFS and others about the capacity and infrastructure for
engagement within the VCFS.
2.2 Representatives from VCFS have been invited to attend today’s meeting including the
Director of Leeds Voice to discuss these issues with Members of the Board.
3.0 Useful Links
3.1

The VCFS have provided a list of useful links for Members reference:a) The Ripple Effect: The Economic Contribution of the VCFS in Leeds
http://www.leedsvoice.org.uk/ResearchRpt_Smfile.pdf
This provides an overview of the scale and value of VCFS activity in Leeds.
b) A Strategic Review of Voluntary, Community and Faith Sector Representation
Page 7

http://www.leedsvoice.org.uk/Current%20Issues/StrategicRepresentationReview.pdf
This provides an overview of the representation of VCFS within the City's key
partnership and strategy groups where VCFS organisations have the opportunity to
influence decision-making, policy and strategy development.
c) The Voluntary, Community and Faith Sector Approach to Reducing Worklessness
http://www.leedsvoice.org.uk/NtG_VCFS_WorklessnessReport_23jul08.pdf
This provides an overview of the thematic delivery undertaken by the VCFS.
d) Smoothie Bar business plan
http://www.leedsvoice.org.uk/Downloads/Oct08/UrbanBar_BusinessPlan08.doc
This provides background information on St Luke's Cares and their work to support
young people establish a Smoothie Bar in their neighbourhood.
4.0

Recommendations

4.1

Members are asked to;
(i)
(ii)
(iii)

Hear and ask questions of the witnesses attending the meeting today.
Consider what, if any, further information or points of clarification the Board
requires to conclude Session 2 of its inquiry.
Discuss any subsequent issues.

Background Papers
None Used

Page 8

Scrutiny Board (City and Regional Partnerships)
Inquiry into the role of the voluntary, community and faith sectors (VCFS)
in council led community engagement
Terms of Reference
1.0

Introduction

1.1

At the first meeting of this new Scrutiny Board, members agreed to carry out an
inquiry into the role of the voluntary, community and faith sector in community
engagement.

1.2

In particular Members were keen to establish what opportunities exist to improve
voluntary, community and faith sector (VCFS) participation and influence, including:
•
•

1.3

exploring what opportunities exist to strengthen the voluntary, community and
faith sector infrastructure which supports engagement, and
exploring what, if any, changes are necessary in the Council’s culture, policy
and practice to strengthen voluntary, community and faith sector engagement.

The context of and drivers for the inquiry are complex:
•

•

•

•

•
•

•
•

•

Members have their own experiences of voluntary, community and faith sector
participation and views about strengths and weaknesses and the potential for
improvement.
There is a Central Government agenda promoting greater levels of engagement,
including the recent publication of the Community Empowerment White Paper,
‘Communities in Control’, which will increase requirements for Councils to
promote, facilitate and deliver a wider range of engagement activity, with
demonstrable impacts on services and other decisions.
The Leeds Strategic Plan 2008-2011 includes an improvement priority and a
national indicator on increasing the number of people who feel they can
influence decisions in their locality.
The Council has legal obligations it must meet in respect of Equality legislation.
It is required to evidence appropriate arrangements for engaging with all
communities.
The Council is a signatory to the Compact for Leeds, where community
participation and equal partnerships are key areas of focus.
Area Committees are about to significantly strengthen their community
engagement responsibilities, including a brief to agree Area Community
Engagement Plans with the goal of delivering better outcomes from local
services.
Other partners and partnerships across Leeds have their own drivers and
arrangements for engagement and many of these are also in transition.
Within the VCFS there are some well established and some newly emerging
networks and structures facilitating effective engagement, but as the Council
and other partners undergo transition to new structures and systems, so the
VCFS sector is required to adapt to meet changing needs as well as respond to
changing resourcing opportunities.
Finally, the recent wave of new accession state migration that Leeds has
experienced has highlighted the need to engage with new communities as they

Page 9

move to the City, to enable them to establish themselves and to ensure that
services are aware of and can respond to changing demands. In reality we need
to identify routes to engage with all of the communities in Leeds for the same
reasons. The VCF sector may have a key role to play in delivering on this goal.
•

2.0

The drivers and context exemplify the challenges and opportunities of the
engagement agenda for Leeds at this time. The scrutiny focus is timely and
provides an opportunity to draw together a number of issues, whilst spotlighting
some specific areas of focus.

The Scope of this Inquiry
The scope of this inquiry is to identify:
a the opportunities and barriers for engagement that exist for the VCFS and wider
community as the Council and others work towards achieving the LAA targets
set for Leeds.
b what good practice exists in Leeds and beyond that can be used and developed.
c

what resources and other support is required by the VCFS in order to play a full
role in delivering on the engagement and other targets for Leeds.

d

some of the changes that may be necessary in the Council’s policy, practice
and culture to deliver improved engagement outcomes for Leeds.

3.0

Comments of the relevant Director and Executive Board Member

3.1

The Director of Environment & Neighbourhoods, and the relevant Executive Board
Members have been requested to comment on these terms of reference.

4.0

Timetable for the Inquiry

4.1

The inquiry will take place over three sessions with a view to issuing a final report in
November 2008.

5.0

Submission of evidence

5.1

The following formal evidence gathering sessions have been scheduled:

5.2

Session One – 25th September 2008
The purpose of this session is to hear evidence about:
•
current and emerging consultation obligations;
•
the arrangements in place within the Council for community engagement at
strategic, service and area level; and
•
the strengths and weaknesses of the current approaches and opportunities
and barriers to improve practice.
In particular the Board will consider:
•
An overview of Council community consultation obligations, performance
requirements and commitments;

Page 10

•

•
•

•

•

5.3

An overview of current Corporate Consultation Policy and processes,
including: Place Survey; Citizens Panel and Corporate arrangements to
facilitate more effective community consultation across services and in
neighbourhoods, e.g. the Corporate Consultation Portal, emerging Equalities
Forum and Hubs;
An overview of Service based engagement practice, including examples of
good practice;
An overview of Area based engagement and the emerging role of Area
Committees in respect of community engagement as a tool for shaping Area
Delivery Plans, local services and activity;
An overview of the opportunities for and practice of engaging with the VCFS
at a strategic level e.g. on the development of key strategies like the
LAA/LSP or in key Leeds Initiative Partnerships;
Consideration of issues relating to reach, impact and opportunities for
coordination and improvement in practice.

Session Two – 23rd Ocober 2008
The purpose of this session is to:
•
•
•

hear evidence of examples of good practice in Leeds and other areas.
hear a VCFS perspective on the opportunities and barriers to participation
with the Council and others.
hear evidence from the VCFS and others about the capacity and
infrastructure for engagement within the VCFS

In particular the board will consider:
•
information requested from the last session;
•
a VCFS perspective on the opportunities for and barriers to, effective
participation at strategic, service and area level;
•
a VCFS perspective on the effectiveness and impact of engagement activity
at a strategic, service and area level;
•
views from VCFS and others on the strengths and weaknesses of the
capacity / infrastructure within the VCFS to support effective engagement.
•
evidence of examples of good practice from Leeds and other local authority
areas;
•
the changes that may be necessary in Council policy, practice, culture and
elsewhere to deliver the desired improved engagement outcomes.
This Session should use specific Case Studies in order to give practical
illustrations to the issues identified.
The Board is asked to consider at this session any emerging recommendations
from the inquiry to date.
5.4

Session Three – 20th November 2008
The purpose of this session is to consider:
• Any information requested from the last session.
• The Board’s draft inquiry report and recommendations.

Page 11

6.0

Witnesses

6.1

The following witnesses have been identified as possible contributors to the Inquiry:
• Leeds Voice
• Faith Community organisation
• Connecting Communities/Leeds BME Network
• Volition, the Advocacy Network for people with Mental Health issues
• Individual resident/s who have participated in community engagement activity
• Leeds City Council’s Corporate Consultation Manager
• Environment and Neighbourhoods Officers, including: Area Management and
Chief Regeneration Officer
• Director of Adult Social Care
• Assistant Chief Executive (Policy, Planning and Improvement) Performance
/Equalities/ LAA development etc
• Director of Children’s Services / Partnerships Manager

7.0

Monitoring Arrangements

7.1

Following the completion of the scrutiny inquiry and the publication of the final
inquiry report and recommendations, the implementation of the agreed
recommendations will be monitored.

7.2

The final inquiry report will include information on the detailed arrangements for
monitoring the implementation of the Board’s recommendations.

8.0

Measures of success

8.1

It is important to consider how the Board will deem whether its inquiry has been
successful in making a difference to local people. Some measures of success may
be obvious at the initial stages of an inquiry and can be included in these terms of
reference. Other measures of success may become apparent as the inquiry
progresses and discussions take place.

8.2

The Board will look to publish practical recommendations.

Page 12

Agenda Item 8
Originator:

Richard Mills

Tel:

247 4557

Report of the Head of Scrutiny and Member Development
Scrutiny Board (City and Regional Partnerships)
Date: 23rd October 2008
Subject: Inquiry into Skills – Session 1
Electoral Wards Affected: All

Specific Implications For:

Equality and Diversity
Community Cohesion
Ward Members consulted
(referred to in report)

Narrowing the Gap

1.0 Introduction
1.1 The Board at its last meeting approved the attached terms of reference for an inquiry
into Skills.
2.0 Session 1 of the Board’s Inquiry
2.1 The purpose of today’s session is to receive an introduction to the Local Area
Agreement (LAA), Multi Area Agreement (MAA) and Further Education (FE). In
particular it is to consider the background and relationships of the LAA, MAA and FE in
contributing towards meeting the target indicators with our partners as set out in the
Council’s Strategic Plan 2008/2011. It will also cover the scope and the rationale behind
the targets which have been set.
2.2 The attached report of the Assistant Chief Officer (Planning, Policy and Improvement
addresses these issues.
3.0

Recommendations

3.1

Members are asked to;
(i)
(ii)
(iii)
(iv)

Receive the report of the Assistant Chief Officer (Planning, Policy and
Improvement and comment on and ask questions of the officers present
Consider what, if any, further information or points of clarification the Board
requires to conclude Session 1 of its inquiry.
Discuss any subsequent issues.
Identify for session 2 of the Board’s Inquiry on 27th November 2008 the
witnesses it would like to hear evidence from.

Background Papers
None Used
Page 13

This page is intentionally left blank

Page 14

Scrutiny Board (City & Regional Partnerships)
Inquiry into Skills
Terms of Reference
1.0

Introduction

1.1

On 3rd July the City & Regional Partnerships Scrutiny Board agreed to carry
out an inquiry into skills.

1.2

In particular, it was decided to investigate the following three individual areas:
(a) Leeds Strategic Plan incorporating the Leeds Local Area Agreement
The background, activity and contribution of all interested parties towards
achieving the relevant improvement priorities and targets contained within the
LSP and any future plans in this regard. Two improvement priorities in the
Leeds Strategic Plan particularly address the issue of improving skill levels to
level 2 or higher, with reference to workforce development.
(b) Leeds City Region Multi Area Agreement (MAA),
The MAA for the Leeds city region has been developed to help close the gap
in higher level skills, and reduce transport congestion across the city region,
as identified within the City Region Development Programme (CRDP). The
MAA was signed off in July by the eleven City Region Local Authority Leaders
and government.
(c) The future of Further Education (FE) in Leeds
The Learning and Skills Council has consulted on the merger of Park Lane,
Thomas Danby and Leeds College of technology to form a new Leeds
College. The three colleges have agreed to the merger proposal, and it is
expected there will be substantial investment in the FE estate.

2.0

Scope of the inquiry

2.1

The purpose of the Inquiry is to make an assessment of, and, where
appropriate make recommendations on, the following areas of interest:
(a) Leeds Strategic Plan incorporating the Leeds Local Area Agreement
The activity and contribution of all interested parties towards achieving the
relevant improvement priorities and targets contained within the LSP and
any future plans in this regard.
(b) The Leeds City Region MAA
The focus of the MAA skills proposals, which is on higher level skills (NVQ
levels 3 / 4 +) in priority business sectors.

Page 15

(c) The future of FE in Leeds.
To ascertain the extent that the merger will bring about improved learning
outcomes for employers, individuals and communities.
3.0

Comments of the relevant Director and Executive Board Member

3.1

The Directors of City Development and Environment & Neighbourhoods, and
the relevant Executive Board Members have been requested to comment on
these terms of reference.

4.0

Timetable for the Inquiry

4.1

The inquiry will take place over 6 sessions with a view to issuing a final report
in April 2009.

5.0

Submission of evidence

5.1

The following formal evidence gathering sessions have been scheduled:

5.2

Session 1 – 23rd October 2008
Introduction to the LAA, MAA and FE
To consider the background and relationships of the LAA, MAA and FE in
contributing towards meeting the target indicators with our partners as set out
in the Council’s Strategic Plan 2008/2011. It will also cover the scope and the
rationale behind the targets which have been set.

5.3

Session 2 – 20th November 2008
The Leeds City Region MAA
The purpose of this part of the session is to consider the current proposed
arrangements for the MAA in Leeds. In particular the Board will consider:
•
•

The rationale for the MAA (evidence base).
The proposed outcomes of the MAA, and impact on Leeds businesses
and residents.

The future of FE in Leeds
This part of the session is to consider the proposed merger of 3 FE
colleges in the city and the likely impact on employers, individuals and
communities and to seek input from LSC, college principals and Leeds Skills
Board on the plans for:
•
•
•

the new college,
its governance, and
ability to respond to skills needs.

Page 16

5.4

Session 3 – 15th January 2009
The Leeds City Region MAA
The purpose of this part of Session 3 is to consider any information requested
from the previous session and examine any possible future developments to
the MAA, eg City Region approaches to tackling worklessness.
The future of FE in Leeds
The purpose of this part of the session is to consider any information
requested from the previous session and further matters relating to the merger
of the 3 colleges and its impact in Leeds.

5.5

Session 4 - 26th February 2009
Leeds Strategic Plan incorporating the Leeds Local Area Agreement
The purpose of this session is to look at how are partners who have signed up
to the LAA are delivering on the targets that have been set and to hear about
the changes they are making in order that they can meet those targets.
It will also explore individuals who are post school who have no
qualifications/ no level 1 and the extent to which services are effective.

5.6

Session 5 - 26th March 2009
Leeds Strategic Plan incorporating the Leeds Local Area Agreement
The purpose of this session is to continue hearing evidence from the parties
signed up to the relevant improvement priorities and targets in the LSP and
any information requested from the previous session.

5.7

Session 6 – 30th April 2009
Final Report and Recommendations
The purpose of this Session is to consider the Board’s draft inquiry report and
recommendations.

6.0

Witnesses

6.1

The following witnesses have been identified as possible contributors to the
Inquiry:
• Director of City Development
• Director of Environment & Neighbourhoods
• Relevant officers from the City Development and Environment and
Neighbourhoods Departments
• Head of Regional Policy
• Key partners such as: Bradford Council (MAA skills lead), WY
Universities, Learning and Skills Council, and Yorkshire Forward
(Regional Development Agency), FE Principals, Shadow Board of the
proposed new college, Leeds Skills Board.
Page 17

7.0

Monitoring Arrangements

7.1

Following the completion of the scrutiny inquiry and the publication of the final
inquiry report and recommendations, the implementation of the agreed
recommendations will be monitored.

7.2

The final inquiry report will include information on the detailed arrangements
for monitoring the implementation of the Board’s recommendations.

8.0

Measures of success

8.1

It is important to consider how the Board will deem whether its inquiry has
been successful in making a difference to local people. Some measures of
success may be obvious at the initial stages of an inquiry and can be included
in these terms of reference. Other measures of success may become
apparent as the inquiry progresses and discussions take place.

8.2

The Board will look to publish practical recommendations.

Page 18

Report of the Assistant Chief Officer (Planning, Policy and Improvement)

Originator:

Dylan
Griffiths/Martin
Dean

Tel:

50401

Date: October 23rd 2008
Board: Scrutiny Board (City & Regional Partnerships
Subject: Skills in the Leeds Strategic Plan, Leeds City Region Multi Area Agreement
and the future of Further Education in Leeds
Electoral Wards Affected:

Specific Implications For:

ALL
Equality and Diversity
Community Cohesion
Narrowing the Gap

X

Executive Summary
On 3rd July 2008 the City and Regional Partnerships Scrutiny Board agreed to carry out an
inquiry into skills in Leeds with particular reference to:
•

Skills targets in the Leeds Strategic Plan (incorporating the Leeds Local Area
Agreement (LAA))

•

Skills targets in the Leeds City Region Multi Area agreement (MAA)

•

The future of Further Education in Leeds.

This report provides background information on these issues to act as a basis for the
Scrutiny Board’s inquiry into skills.

Page 19

1.0

Purpose Of This Report

1.1

The purpose of this report is to provide background information on the coverage of skills in
the Leeds Strategic Plan and Leeds City Region Multi Area Agreement and the future of
Further Education in Leeds to inform the Scrutiny Board’s inquiry into skills in Leeds.

2.0

Background

2.1.

A highly skilled workforce is recognised as vital to Leeds future prosperity and
achieving fair access to that prosperity for all, by the Council, Government, public
agencies like Yorkshire Forward, schools and further education colleges and local
employers. These bodies are working together in a number of ways to provide
access to high quality and economically valuable skills training that meet the needs
of employees and employers and enable them to fulfill their potential. The provision
of skills education and training is evolving rapidly to meet the changing needs of
economy. Major developments in Leeds include new approaches, improvement
priorities and targets in the Leeds Strategic Plan and Leeds City Region Multi Area
Agreement and the merger of three Further Education colleges in Leeds.

3.0.

Main Issues
Skills Targets in the Leeds Strategic Plan (Local Area agreement)

3.1

The Leeds Strategic Plan 2008 to 2011 recognises the importance of a highly skilled
workforce and the provision of infrastructure, institutions and culture to support lifelong
learning for the city’s future. The strategic outcome adopted under the learning theme is to
have ‘An enhanced workforce that will meet future challenges through fulfilling individual
and economic potential and investing in learning facilities’.

3.2

This outcome is based on sound evidence. A Strategic Economic Assessment of Leeds
conducted by Yorkshire Forward found that: ‘employers in Leeds are more likely to report
skills gaps in their workforce, indicating that the current labour force needs to improve
certain skills to work effectively’ and ‘the instances of skills shortage vacancies are also
higher in Leeds than elsewhere in the [West Yorkshire] sub region’.

3.3

It also found that employers in Leeds are relatively good at providing training and should be
supported to continue doing so.

3.4

The priorities and targets in the Leeds Strategic plan support this outcome. Two indicators
have been selected to measure progress against the improvement priority to ‘enhance the
skill levels of the workforce to fulfill individual and economic potential’. These are the
proportion of the working aged population qualified to at least Level 2 (equivalent to five
good GCSE passes) or higher and the proportion of the working age population qualified to
at least Level 3 (equivalent to two ‘A’ levels) or higher. Both of these indicators are drawn
from the National Indicator Set and have been agreed with the Government as part of the
negotiations for the Leeds Strategic Plan 2008 to 2011.

3.5

These targets are selected in the Leeds Strategic Plan as they are regarded as the ones
which can make the greatest contribution to tackling worklessness and getting people into
employment and providing opportunities to gain further skills in work. They are, in effect,
gateway qualifications. The Leeds Strategic plan priorities and targets complement the
Multi Area Agreement which focuses on the reported gaps in higher level skills with an initial
focus on financial and business services.

3.6

Several partners have signed up to support the delivery of these targets. The Learning and
Skills Council, a government agency, has agreed to be the lead partner for these targets
and is responsible for coordinating activity to help deliver the targets and collating
performance management information. The significant contribution of employers in the city

Page 20

is demonstrated by Leeds Chamber of Commerce and Industry signing up to contribute to
the delivery of this target. The other partners who have agreed to help contribute to the
delivery of these targets in addition to Leeds City Council are Jobcentre Plus, Education
Leeds, Leeds Colleges and the voluntary, community and faith bodies who will coordinate
their contribution through Leeds Voice.
3.7

The targets set for Leeds are ambitious and represent an acceleration on past performance.
For Level 2 skills the target is to achieve an increase of nine percentage points by 2010/11
and 6 percentage points by 2010/11. New national programmes including the Skills Pledge
and Train to Gain will increase the numbers achieving basic skills and help Leeds achieve
the targets it has agreed with Government.

3.8

The focus in the Leeds Strategic Plan on enhancing skill levels as a prime lever to drive
economic growth and promote wider and fairer access to economic opportunities follows the
analysis presented in the Leitch Review of Skills published in 2006. This report
recommended that the UK commit itself to become a world leader in skills by 2020 by
focusing on employer needs for economically valuable skills and re-orienting the activities of
the Learning and Skills Council and further education colleges to help deliver this.
Skills Targets in the Leeds City Region Multi Area agreement (MAA)

3.9

The Leeds City Region MAA builds on the ambition in the City Region Development
Programme launched in 2006 where 11 local authorities came together ‘to develop an
internationally recognised city region; to raise our economic performance; to spread
prosperity across the whole of our city region, and to promote a better quality of life for all of
those who live and work here’. In particular, the MAA identifies and proposes new ways to
remove the barriers to faster economic growth including ‘closing the persistent gap in higher
level skills (NVQ level 3/4+), including those identified within our growth sectors and
drivers’. The initial focus is to be on skills in the Financial and Business Services sectors. .

3.10

A key benefit of the MAA is an opportunity to promote a focused dialogue with Government
about how policy can be adapted to facilitate faster growth in the Leeds City Region. Leeds
City Region has submitted a number of ‘asks’ to Government to adapt policy locally to
support the acquisition of economically valuable skills and the creation of a competitive
workforce. These are closer consultation with Government regionally and nationally on the
Integrated Regional Strategy and national skills policy/legislation and with Government
agencies including LSC and HEFCE; commitment by DIUS and its agencies to work with
Leeds City Region to develop a higher level skills plan for the city region by April 2009,
agreement to test innovative ways of engaging employers in providing skills training and
agreement to pilot more streamlined and flexible ways of delivering and accrediting skills
courses in key growth sectors.

.
Further Education
3.11

Merger process

3.12

Learning and Skills Council have led a detailed process of consultation and evidence
gathering to consider the future arrangements for further education in the city.

3.13

Detailed reports which set out the process are available from the LSC – including the
Cambridge Education post 16 review, GVA Grimley review of the FE Estate, and the
Strategic Options review of May 2007.

3.14

The outcome of this process is that three colleges are to merge, Park Lane (Leeds and
Keighley), Thomas Danby, Leeds College of Technology. The consultation ‘Excellence and
Inclusion (May 2008)’ sets out the benefits of this merger proposal to:
• Education for young people
• Responsiveness to employers needs
• Communities

Page 21

3.15

It is anticipated the three colleges could merge by Spring 2009, however before that is
achieved the plan has to receive formal approval from the Learning & Skills Council’s
Regional Board and then to the Secretary of State for a final decision.

New College Arrangements
3.16

Commenting on the positive vote Alan Gill, Chair of the Leeds College Strategic Board said:
“With an estimated budget of £70m, the new college will build upon the individual specialisms
of the three colleges and enhance education provision to all within the community as well as
attract potential government funding of up to £200m to fund new ‘state of the art’ buildings;
and it is good to see that the Governors of the 3 colleges share a common vision of delivering
a college that will be one of the best in Europe not only learners, but for staff, the community
and the regional economy.”

3.17

The College will, through its vocational educational provision, contribute across a broad range
of subject areas to increasing skill levels at Levels 2 & 3 in the City.

4.0

Recommendation

4.1

It is recommended that City and Regional Partnerships Scrutiny Board note the
contents of this report as a basis for the inquiry into skills in Leeds.

Background Papers

The Leeds Strategic Plan 2008 - 2011
Leeds City Region Multi Area Agreement
Strategic Economic Assessment

Page 22

Page 23

Enhance the skill
levels of the
workforce to fulfil
individual and
economic potential

NI 164 Proportion of population aged
19-64 for males and 19-59 for females
qualified to at least Level 3 or highe

NI 163 Proportion of population aged
19-64 for males and 19-59 for females
qualified to at least Level 2 or higher.

51.0%

305,000
(71.0%)

Baseline +
2
percentage
points*

Baseline +
2
percentage
points*

Baseline +
4
percentage
points*

Baseline +
5
percentage
points*

Baseline +
6
percentage
points*

Baseline +
9
percentage
points *

VCFS bodies contacted
through Leeds Voice
Economy and Skills Forum

Leeds Colleges

Education Leeds

Leeds City Council

Leeds Chamber

LEARNING AND SKILLS
COUNCIL*

VCFS bodies contacted
through Leeds Voice
Economy and Skills Forum

Re’new

Leeds Colleges

Jobcentre Plus

Education Leeds

Leeds City Council

Leeds Chamber

LEARNING AND SKILLS
COUNCIL*

This page is intentionally left blank

Page 24

Agenda Item 9

Originator:

Richard Mills

Tel:247 4557

Report of the Head of Scrutiny and Member Development
Scrutiny Board (City and Regional Partnerships)
Date: 23rd October 2008
Subject: Progress Report on the Board’s Working Groups
Electoral Wards Affected: All

Specific Implications For:

Equality and Diversity
Community Cohesion
Narrowing the Gap

Ward Members consulted
(referred to in report)

1.0

Introduction

1.1

The Scrutiny Board has established a Small Businesses Working Group and a
University Fees Working Group to consider the appropriateness of bringing forward
draft terms of reference for consideration by the Board with a view to undertaking
inquiries on these issues.

2.0

Small Businesses Working Group

2.1

A note of the last meeting of the Small Businesses Working Group held on the 7th
October 2008 is attached for Members consideration.

2.2

The fact sheet provided by the Chief Economic Services Officer and the Head of
Business Support and Tourism which is referred to in the note is also attached for
Members information.

3.0

University Fees Working Group

3.1

The Board in July considered a request for scrutiny from Leeds University Union
concerning their fees campaign. The University Union wants the Scrutiny Board to
investigate what impact the current funding model has had on applications to their
local institutions from local students, but also what wider impacts the city could face if
an increase of fees was introduced following the 2009 review.

Page 25

3.2

It has proved difficult to find a suitable date when all the parties could meet
together to discuss this issue since the original request for scrutiny was heard in July.
The Universities themselves were extremely busy over the summer months dealing
with their new intake of students for 2008/09.

3.3

However, a date has now been agreed and the University Fees Working Group will
meet on the 17th October 2008 with representatives from the Universities and the
University Unions and the outcome of their deliberations will be reported at todays
meeting.

4.0

Recommendations

4.1

The Board is asked to
(i)

receive the note of the Skills Working Group held on 7th October 2008.and the
report of the Chief Economic Services Officer and the Head of Business Support
and Tourism.

(ii)

note the outcome of the University Fees Working Group meeting held on 17th
October and consider how it wishes to respond to the University Union’s request
for scrutiny.

Background Papers – none used

Page 26

Scrutiny Board (City & Regional Partnerships)
Small Businesses Working Group
Meeting held on 7th October 2008
Present:
Councillor Sue Bentley
Councillor Bernard Atha
Others in Attendance:
Paul Stephens, Chief Economic Services Officer, City Development
Phil Cole, Head of Business Support and Tourism, City Development
Richard Mills, Principal Scrutiny Adviser, Democratic Services

1.0 Note of Last meeting
1.1 The note of the Working Group’s last meeting held on 18th July 2008 was
considered and agreed. The Principal Scrutiny Adviser confirmed that this note had
been submitted to the Scrutiny Board (City & Regional Partnerships) at its meeting
on 25th September 2008.
2.0 Briefing Paper
2.1 Members considered a briefing paper from the Chief Economic Services Officer
and the Head of Business Support and Tourism headed “Small Businesses in
Leeds – The Statistics”. This had been requested at the last meeting of the
Working Group to assist Members in their deliberations.
2.2 A discussion took place on a number of issues and topics including:
• The key statistics on the business stock which are always difficult to interpret.
• Business size and formation.
• Business support provided by the Council to the Leeds Chamber of Commerce,
key sectors in the Leeds economy, the provision of workspace and assistance
to help local companies and new companies in Leeds.
• Local Enterprise Growth Initiative (LEGI), the work being carried out in schools
and Enterprise Leeds at White Rose House.
• Information on our key partners and partnership arrangements.
• Requirement to pay business rates on empty premises which is preventing
speculative developments from taking place
• Enterprise Catalyst Centres in Leeds
• New economic development strategy
2.3 A Member expressed concern that many individuals particularly in the more
deprived areas of the city would like to start their own small business but cannot
find suitable premises at a reasonable rent. There are also small businesses and
charity shops which provide a community service which are threatened with

Page 27

closure as rents are increased and the Council should be providing more support.
Officers referred to the fact that as they only have about 200 small units across the
city and there are 46,000 businesses in Leeds the Council’s contribution in this
regard is extremely limited particularly when taking into account the turnover of
tenants. They are also required to achieve best consideration on business rents.
They were also of the view that their rents are reasonable having regard
to the condition of the stock available and that there was not a fundamental
problem with small businesses in Leeds.
2.4 A Member asked about whether there were plans to dispose of more of the small
units owned by the Council and officers responded that this was the responsibility
of Asset Management.
3.0 Action Agreed by Working Group
3.1 It was agreed that the

4.0

(i)

Chief Economic Services Officer let Members of the Working Group know
the specific legislation and or Statutory Instrument that requires the Council
to achieve best consideration in respect to business rents.

(ii)

Current development of a new economic development strategy (An agenda
for Economic Performance) be used by Scrutiny Board (City & Regional
Partnerships) at the start of the new municipal year 2009/2010 to examine
how effective it has been in bringing partners together to work
collaboratively on common objectives, identify best practice and any lessons
learned for future partnership working.

Recommendation

4.1 That Scrutiny Board (City and Regional Partnerships) approve the proposal
as set out paragraph 3.1(ii) which will be subject to acceptance by the successor
Board.

Page 28

Briefing Note – Small Businesses Working Group –
Scrutiny Board (City and Regional Partnerships)
1.0

SMALL BUSINESS IN LEEDS – THE STATISTICS

1.1

Key Statistics on the Business Stock
In Leeds it is estimated that there are 46,000 businesses of which 19,565 are
registered for VAT**. This figure is based on an estimate of the number of
business units & individuals working on a self employed basis.
** Businesses need to register for VAT when their turnover is above £61,000 per annum

1.2

Business Size
In terms of business size 80% of units employed between 1 and 10 people
(accounting for 64,000 employees and 15% share of Leeds employment),
95% of units employed less than 50 people (36% of Leeds employment) and
1% of units employed over 200 people (39% of Leeds employment). Leeds
has a significant proportion of larger businesses compared to sub region and
regional averages.

1.3

Business Formation
No accurate data is currently available to measure the number of new
businesses or the level of business failures at a District level. VAT data gives
information on VAT registration & deregistration. This shows that Leeds in
common with most of the core cities has shown an increase in its business
stock over the period 2001 to 2006. The increase at 8.3% is above core city
average but below the average for the sub region, region and national.

D:\moderngov\Data\AgendaItemDocs\0\2\6\AI00015620\BriefingNoteforStrutinyonSmallBusinessesSept080.doc

Page 29

City

VAT Stock (2006)

London
*Birmingham
*Leeds
Edinburgh
*Bristol
*Sheffield
*Manchester
Bradford
Kirklees
*Liverpool
Cardiff
Nottingham
*Newcastle
West Yorkshire
Yorkshire & Humber
*Core City Average
Great Britain

309,225
23,490
19,565
13,855
12,385
12,015
11,865
11,555
11,190
8,665
8,035
6,420
5,650
56,035
139,970
100,055
1,892,385

% change 2001 to
2006
10.0
4.1
8.3
10.6
11.2
7.2
2.8
9.2
10.6
11.2
7.9
5.9
10.1
10.2
9.9
7.7
9.5

* Core Cities
(Source Small Business Service, BERR)

VAT registration rates in 2005 were 33 per 10,000 population which was
higher than for the region but lower than the national rate.
Below district level little formal data exists on enterprise activity. Leeds along
with other Local Enterprise Growth Initiative (LEGI) authorities will be
measuring the growth in business stock at the local level (the targets in the
Local Area Agreement derive from the LEGI programme).
In summary the enterprise picture for Leeds is mixed, the city has a dynamic
economy which produces new business opportunities but also one which
produces a variety of alternative employment options. This in common with
many cities leads to lower self employment rates than say in rural areas like
North Yorkshire. Evidence produced as part of the LEGI Bid suggests that self
employment and enterprise rates are low compared to city & national
averages in our most deprived communities. The LEGI programme is
designed to both raise awareness of enterprise as a practical employment
option for local residents and provide practical assistance to help new
businesses to start up and grow within our most deprived communities.
2.0

SMALL BUSINESS SUPPORT – LEEDS CITY COUNCIL

2.1

The Council has delivered support to small businesses (defined as
businesses with less than 50 employees) for many years as part of its
economic development/ economic regeneration activities. These activities are
discretionary provided under general powers to secure the economic well
being of the district (Local Government Act 2000). As a discretionary service
there are no national guidelines that define the scope or level of service
provision. Most local authorities provide a service, but it’s scope and the

D:\moderngov\Data\AgendaItemDocs\0\2\6\AI00015620\BriefingNoteforStrutinyonSmallBusinessesSept080.doc

Page 30

resources applied to it, vary greatly. Given limited council resources, it has
been important for the Council to work in partnership with a range of bodies to
deliver support to new and existing businesses based in Leeds.
2.2

In Leeds the Council’s role in supporting small businesses has evolved over
the last thirteen years in response to changes in government policy and
changes in government funding. Over this period the government has sought
to consolidate business support activities at a local level (through the first
phase of Business Links 1995 to 2001), sub regional level (through the
merger of local business links and the creation of a Business Link for West
Yorkshire 2001 to 2008) and regional level (the merger of four sub regional
business links and the creation of Business Link Yorkshire in 2008). At the
same time as the government has sought to rationalise the coordination of
business support activities at different spatial levels it has proliferated the
number of individual business support schemes provided nationally by
creating a range of funding streams via different government departments and
different government initiatives. The government recently identified 3,000
separate business support schemes and pledged to reduce this number to
less than 100 by 2010 (the Business Support Simplification Programme).
The main areas of support are outlined below. Whilst most LCC support is not
targeted specifically at small businesses, as 2.1 above notes, most
businesses in Leeds are in fact small businesses employing less than 50
people.

2.3

Support to Leeds Chamber of Commerce
Leeds Chamber represents 2,000 businesses in the Leeds District and
provides a range of services to help companies to start up, survive and grow.
Most Chamber members are small businesses. The Chamber is a key
location centre for Business Link Yorkshire (BLY) and provides a number of
support services in West and North Yorkshire under contract to BLY. The City
Council is a member of the Chamber and is represented on the Chamber's
board of directors. In addition to membership, the Council supports the
Chamber through discrete projects, so for example the Council currently funds
the chamber to provide an international trade advisory service to help
companies with exporting and importing. In addition to this support the
Council has located its business & enterprise service in the Chamber's
premises and helped develop the Enterprise Leeds concept as a single
gateway
to
business
support
in
the
Leeds
district
(see
www.enterpriseleeds.co.uk for more information). This has been a practical
way of sharing costs and encouraging joint working between a range of
different bodies providing business support services in Leeds.

2.4

Support to Key Sectors
Over the last twenty years the Council has provided support to a variety of key
sectors in the Leeds economy (for example Leeds Financial Services Initiative
was originally established with a range of support from the Council). Over time
the sectors supported have changed in response to changes in the city’s
economy. At present the Council is working with other partners in providing
support services for companies based in the media, manufacturing,
healthcare & construction sectors.

D:\moderngov\Data\AgendaItemDocs\0\2\6\AI00015620\BriefingNoteforStrutinyonSmallBusinessesSept080.doc

Page 31

2.5

Provision of Workspace
The Council owns a range of accommodation which currently provides
workspace for small businesses. The Business Support Service works in
partnership with colleagues in Asset Management to ensure that this
accommodation meets the needs of small businesses. For example the
service recently secured European funding to redevelop some vacant
industrial units on Domestic St Industrial Estate to bring these back into use
for local businesses. The service is currently responsible for managed
workspace developments at Chapeltown Enterprise Centre and Leeds Media
Centre (in partnership with Environment & Neighbourhoods).

2.6

Assistance to help local companies and new companies to invest in
Leeds
The business & enterprise service assists companies to expand or to relocate
to Leeds through the provision of information on land, property and labour
availability. During 2007/08 3,008 enquires were received from companies
wishing to expand/relocate; of these 60% were from existing Leeds based
companies. Approximately 30% of enquiries received find suitable premises in
Leeds.
In 2005/06 (the latest figures available) 206 companies found suitable
premises after receiving LCC assistance & 401 jobs were created as a result
of expansion/relocation.

2.7

Local Enterprise Growth Initiative (LEGI)
The business & enterprise service is responsible for the delivery of the Leeds
LEGI programme. Leeds LEGI is a £20.6m programme over the period 2007
to 011 which aims to increase entrepreneurship and tackle "worklessness"
issues in our most deprived neighbourhoods.

2.8

Other Support
In addition to the above services the Council through it’s many functions
provides indirect support to local businesses. For example through the Jobs
and Skills service helping businesses to employ local labour, through the
library service providing business information to help job seekers and local
residents considering self employment and through the tourism service
helping businesses to promote their services to potential visitors.

3.0

KEY PARTNERS

3.1

Business Support
Enterprise Leeds has been established to provide a single gateway to
business support services in Leeds. It brings together a number of partners in
one building to promote the economic well-being of the city and helping
businesses to develop and prosper. See www.enterpriseleeds.co.uk for more
information.
Leeds Chamber of Commerce and Industry Ltd

D:\moderngov\Data\AgendaItemDocs\0\2\6\AI00015620\BriefingNoteforStrutinyonSmallBusinessesSept080.doc

Page 32

Leeds Chamber works with a range of partners to position Leeds as a leading
business location by supporting the city’s business community and its
entrepreneurs. It plays an active role in the key economic development
activities in the city, ensuring the views and needs of business are
represented. See www leedschamber.co.uk. for more information.

Sharing the Success, the Leeds LEGI programme
Leeds LEGI is a programme administered by the Council and delivered by
over twenty partners. For more information on Leeds LEGI please see
www.sharingthesuccess.co.uk.
Business Link Yorkshire
Individuals thinking of starting a business, or existing companies that would
like to grow their business, should contact Business Link. They assess
business needs and provide access to business support across the whole of
Yorkshire and the Humber.
There is a tremendous amount of support available for new and growing
businesses. Business Link provides an objective and impartial service and
provides access to a wide variety of information, guides and self-help material
that can help any business, at any stage of their development, and on any
topic.
Information can be accessed by phone or email through the Customer
Information Centre, or through the website and online services; or in person at
our local access points, situated in local communities.
Face-to-face support is available through an events programmes and adviser
teams. Business Link events are delivered locally throughout the region, and
offer a wide range of presentations, seminars and workshops, covering all
aspects of starting and growing a successful business. Its adviser services
provide tailored, one-to-one support to help businesses identify options for
growth and development and access specialist help to address those
business needs. See www.businesslinkyorkshire.co.uk
Manufacturing Advisory Service – Yorkshire & Humber (MAS)
Funded by Yorkshire Forward, MAS provides access to practical
manufacturing advice and support to help businesses improve their
productivity and efficiency levels. Support offered includes:
• Free impartial manufacturing advice from experienced specialists
• Free on-site manufacturing reviews highlighting actions to improve
operational performance
• Free on-site focussed research to address specific issues already
identified
• Low cost factory visits to meet with other successful manufacturers and
develop knowledge in best practice tools and techniques
• 50% subsidised manufacturing improvement projects providing longer
term on-site, practical support from experienced manufacturing
specialists
See www.mas-yh.co.uk
D:\moderngov\Data\AgendaItemDocs\0\2\6\AI00015620\BriefingNoteforStrutinyonSmallBusinessesSept080.doc

Page 33

Leeds Universities
The two Leeds universities provide a number of business support services.
For example Business Start Up @Leeds Met Promotes innovation and
entrepreneurship across the university, the business incubation centre offers
office space and tailored business support for start up businesses, the
incubation centre provides office and laboratory accommodation for young hi
tech businesses. See www.leedsmet.ac.uk/businessincubator/
www.lmu.ac.uk/business-start-up
www.leedsinnovationcentre.com
Further Education Colleges
Some of the FE colleges provide business support services, so for example
Park Lane College run the Unit which provides office space and practical
assistance for young businesses.
Other Business Support/Representative Organisations
The federation of small Businesses (FSB), the Confederation of British
Industry (CBI) and the Institute of Directors (IOD), all have members in Leeds,
and the FSB is a member of the Leeds Economy and Skills Partnership.
However the FSB has limited capacity to engage at the local level, and the
other two organisations tend to focus on the regional or national agenda.
3.2

Comment on Partner Arrangements
As the list above shows there are a large number of organisations providing a
wide range of business support services. Enterprise Leeds and the Leeds
LEGI programme are good examples of where the Council is bringing
partners together to work collaboratively on a number of different projects.
The new economic development strategy (An Agenda for Economic
Performance) which is currently in development is also a good example of the
Council bringing partners together to work collaboratively on common
objectives. It may be appropriate for the City & Regional partnerships scrutiny
board to examine these examples in more detail to identify best practice and
any lessons learned for future partnership working.

Phil Cole – Head of Business Support and Tourism
Paul Stephens – Chief Economic Services Officer
September 08

D:\moderngov\Data\AgendaItemDocs\0\2\6\AI00015620\BriefingNoteforStrutinyonSmallBusinessesSept080.doc

Page 34

Agenda Item 10
Originator:

Richard Mills

Tel:247 4557
Report of the Head of Scrutiny and Member Development
Scrutiny Board (City and Regional Partnerships)
Date: 23rd October 2008
Subject: Current Work Programme
Electoral Wards Affected: All

Specific Implications For:

Equality and Diversity
Community Cohesion
Ward Members consulted
(referred to in report)

Narrowing the Gap

1.0

Introduction

1.1

Appendix 1 to this report provides Members with a copy of the Board’s current
Work Programme.

1.2

Appendix 2 is the current Forward Plan of Key Decisions for the period 1st October
to 31st January 2009.

1.3

Appendix 3 provides Members of the Board with the latest Executive Board minutes

2.0

Recommendations

2.1

The Board is requested to:
(i)

Determine from these documents whether there are any additional items the
Board would wish to add to its Work Programme.

(ii)

Receive and make any changes to the attached Work Programme following
decisions made at today’s meeting.

Background Papers
None used
Page 35

This page is intentionally left blank

Page 36

Page 37

Notes

To consider a progress report
following the establishment of a
number of working groups by the
Board

Working Groups

Key:
CCFA / RFS – Community call for action / request for scrutiny
RP – Review of existing policy
DP – Development of new policy
MSR – Monitoring scrutiny recommendations
PM – Performance management
B – Briefings (Including potential areas for scrutiny)
SC – Statutory consultation
CI – Call in

To consider the background and
relationships of the LAA, MAA and
FE in contributing towards meeting
the target indicators with our
partners as set out in the Council’s
Strategic Plan 2008/2011. It will also
cover the scope and the rationale
behind the targets which have been
set.

RP/DP

RP / DP

Type of
item

The Board established the University B
Fees Working Group and the Small
Businesses Working Group in July

The Board approved terms of
reference for this inquiry at its
meeting in September following a
recommendation from the Skills
Working group it established earlier
in the year

Deadline for receipt of Reports 14th October 2008
To consider good practice in Leeds
The Board included this in its work
and other areas and hear from
programme at the July meeting
witnesses from the VCFS using
specific case studies

Description

Session 1 Inquiry into Skills

Meeting date – 23rd October 2008
Session 2 of the Inquiry into the role
of the voluntary, community and faith
sectors (VCFS) in council led
community engagement

Item

SCRUTINY BOARD (CITY & REGIONAL PARTNERSHIPS) OUTLINE WORK PROGRAMME (October) 2008 APPENDIX 1

Page 38

Description

Notes

Type of
item

Key:
CCFA / RFS – Community call for action / request for scrutiny
RP – Review of existing policy
DP – Development of new policy
MSR – Monitoring scrutiny recommendations
PM – Performance management
B – Briefings (Including potential areas for scrutiny)
SC – Statutory consultation
CI – Call in

Meeting date – 20th November 2008
Deadline for receipt of Reports 31st October 2008
Session 3 Voluntary Community
To consider information requested at The Board included this in its work
RP / DP
Faith Sector
the last Board meeting and to
programme at the July meeting
consider the Board’s draft inquiry
report and recommendations
Invitation to the Chief Executive and To hear from the Chief Executive on The Board agreed that it would be
PM
Chair of the Leeds Initiative
work being undertaken to Narrow the appropriate to monitor progress
Narrowing the Gap Executive
Gap through our partner
through the submission of a
organisations
quarterly or half yearly report to this
Board & from our partners on their
concerns & successes
Session 2 Inquiry into Skills
To consider the current proposed
The Board approved terms of
RP/DP
arrangements for the MAA in Leeds, reference for this inquiry at its
in particular the rationale for the
meeting in September following a
MAA (evidence base) and the
recommendation from the Skills
proposed outcomes of the MAA, and Working group it established earlier
impact on Leeds businesses and
in the year
residents; consider the proposed
merger of 3 FE colleges in the city &
the likely impact on employers,
individuals & communities & seek
input from LSC, college principals
and Leeds Skills Board on the plans.

Item

SCRUTINY BOARD (CITY & REGIONAL PARTNERSHIPS) OUTLINE WORK PROGRAMME (October) 2008 APPENDIX 1

Page 39

Description

Notes

Key:
CCFA / RFS – Community call for action / request for scrutiny
RP – Review of existing policy
DP – Development of new policy
MSR – Monitoring scrutiny recommendations
PM – Performance management
B – Briefings (Including potential areas for scrutiny)
SC – Statutory consultation
CI – Call in

To receive an Annual Report on
Performance against the Leeds
Strategic Plan

Annual Report on Performance
against the Leeds Strategic Plan

At the Board meeting in June 2008
officers recommended that this
Board was appropriately placed to
take an overview of this document

Deadline for receipt of Reports 29th December 2008
This Session is to consider any
information requested from the
previous session and examine any
possible future developments to the
MAA, eg City Region approaches to
tackling worklessness and further
matters relating to the merger of the
3 colleges and its impact in Leeds.

Meeting date – 15th January 2009
Session 3 Inquiry into Skills

Meeting date – 17th December 2008
Deadline for receipt of Reports 28th November 2008
Tracking Recommendations
To consider a report on progress in
implementing the Board’s
recommendations to date.

Item

MSR

RP/DP

MSR

Type of
item

SCRUTINY BOARD (CITY & REGIONAL PARTNERSHIPS) OUTLINE WORK PROGRAMME (October) 2008 APPENDIX 1

Page 40

Key:
CCFA / RFS – Community call for action / request for scrutiny
RP – Review of existing policy
DP – Development of new policy
MSR – Monitoring scrutiny recommendations
PM – Performance management
B – Briefings (Including potential areas for scrutiny)
SC – Statutory consultation
CI – Call in

Deadline for receipt of Reports 6th March 2009
The purpose of this session is to
continue hearing evidence from the
parties signed up to the relevant
improvement priorities and targets in
the LSP and any information
requested from the previous session.

Meeting date – 26th March 2009
Session 5 Inquiry into Skills

Notes

Deadline for receipt of Reports 6th February 2009
The purpose of this session is to
look at how are partners who have
signed up to the LAA are delivering
on the targets that have been set
and to hear about the changes they
are making in order that they can
meet those targets. It will also
explore individuals who are post
school who have no qualifications/
no level 1 and the extent to which
services are effective.

Description

Meeting date – 26th February 2009
Session 4 Inquiry into Skills

Item

RP/DP

RP/DP

Type of
item

SCRUTINY BOARD (CITY & REGIONAL PARTNERSHIPS) OUTLINE WORK PROGRAMME (October) 2008 APPENDIX 1

Page 41

Notes

To approve the Board’s contribution
to the Scrutiny Boards Annual Report
2008/09.

The purpose of this Session is to
consider the Board’s draft inquiry
report and recommendations.

Deadline for receipt of Reports 9th April 2009

Description

Key:
CCFA / RFS – Community call for action / request for scrutiny
RP – Review of existing policy
DP – Development of new policy
MSR – Monitoring scrutiny recommendations
PM – Performance management
B – Briefings (Including potential areas for scrutiny)
SC – Statutory consultation
CI – Call in

Annual Report

Session 6 Inquiry into Skills

Meeting date – April 2009

Item

RP/DP

Type of
item

SCRUTINY BOARD (CITY & REGIONAL PARTNERSHIPS) OUTLINE WORK PROGRAMME (October) 2008 APPENDIX 1

Page 42

Councillors Bentley, Atha, Kendal

Councillors Bentley, Kendal, J Lewis,
Atha and Yeadon

Councillors Bentley, Driver, Yeadon
and J Lewis

Small Businesses

University Fees

Skills

Key:
CCFA / RFS – Community call for action / request for scrutiny
RP – Review of existing policy
DP – Development of new policy
MSR – Monitoring scrutiny recommendations
PM – Performance management
B – Briefings (Including potential areas for scrutiny)
SC – Statutory consultation
CI – Call in

Membership

Working group

Working Groups

Work completed. Terms of
Reference approved for an inquiry
by the Board on the 25th September
2008.

Information from the working group
held on the 17th October 2008 will
be provided to the Board meeting on
23rd October.

Information from the working group
meeting held on 7th October 2008
will be reported to the Board on the
23rd October.

Progress update

22nd
September
2008

17th
October
2008

7th October
2008

Date last
meeting

SCRUTINY BOARD (CITY & REGIONAL PARTNERSHIPS) OUTLINE WORK PROGRAMME (October) 2008 APPENDIX 1

Page 43

Key:
CCFA / RFS – Community call for action / request for scrutiny
RP – Review of existing policy
DP – Development of new policy
MSR – Monitoring scrutiny recommendations
PM – Performance management
B – Briefings (Including potential areas for scrutiny)
SC – Statutory consultation
CI – Call in

The decision had been called-in for review by Councillors J Lewis, J Dowson, L Mulherin, E Nash and L
Yeadon on the following grounds:-

‘In accordance with the Council’s agreed budget for 2008-09, a grant of £400,000 is payable to Marketing
Leeds Limited to undertake a range of activities as detailed in the attached grant agreement.’

Grant Agreement to Marketing Leeds 2008/09

The Head of Scrutiny and Member Development submitted a report, together with relevant background
papers, relating to an officer delegated decision, D34227 of the Chief Executive as follows:

28 Review of Called-In Decision - Grant Agreement with Marketing Leeds 2008/09

SCRUTINY BOARD (CENTRAL AND CORPORATE)
WEDNESDAY, 17TH SEPTEMBER, 2008

Outstanding Issues
The Transport Bill
The relationship between Local Government Yorkshire and Humber, Government Office for Yorkshire and the
Humber, the RDAs, Yorkshire Forward and the Regional Minister
Scrutiny Arrangements at a regional level
Marketing Leeds (see extract of minute below from Scrutiny Board Central and Corporate Functions)

SCRUTINY BOARD (CITY & REGIONAL PARTNERSHIPS) OUTLINE WORK PROGRAMME (October) 2008 APPENDIX 1

Page 44

Key:
CCFA / RFS – Community call for action / request for scrutiny
RP – Review of existing policy
DP – Development of new policy
MSR – Monitoring scrutiny recommendations
PM – Performance management
B – Briefings (Including potential areas for scrutiny)
SC – Statutory consultation
CI – Call in

The following officers were also in attendance to respond to Members’ queries and comments:• Paul Rogerson, Chief Executive;
• James Rogers, Assistant Chief Executive (Planning, Policy and Improvement);
• Jean Dent, Director of Development Services; and
• Deborah Green, Chief Executive of Marketing Leeds.

Councillors J Lewis and L Mulherin attended the meeting to present evidence to the Board. Councillor J Lewis
gave a presentation outlining the reasons for the call-in request.

The Board also considered the following additional information:• Marketing Leeds – Business Plan 2008/09;
• Marketing Leeds – Activity and Events Strategy 2008/09; and
• Marketing Leeds – Statutory Financial Statements for the year ended 31 March 2008;

The Board considered the following written evidence:• A copy of the Call-In request form; and
• A copy of the Delegated Decision Form dated 18th August, 2008 of the Chief Executive, together with a copy
of the accompanying report on which the decision was based.

‘I would like the Scrutiny Board to investigate whether the key aims of the partnership between the Council and
Marketing Leeds have been, and will continue to be, achieved.’

SCRUTINY BOARD (CITY & REGIONAL PARTNERSHIPS) OUTLINE WORK PROGRAMME (October) 2008 APPENDIX 1

Page 45

Key:
CCFA / RFS – Community call for action / request for scrutiny
RP – Review of existing policy
DP – Development of new policy
MSR – Monitoring scrutiny recommendations
PM – Performance management
B – Briefings (Including potential areas for scrutiny)
SC – Statutory consultation
CI – Call in

RESOLVED –
(a) To note the Board’s support for Marketing Leeds;
(b) That the Officer Delegated Decision D34227 be immediately released for implementation;
(c) That the Chief Executive reports back to the Scrutiny Board (Central and Corporate) at the October
meeting regarding amendments to paragraphs 6 (Obligations of Marketing Leeds) and 8 (Performance
Monitoring) of the funding agreement between Leeds City Council and Marketing Leeds;
(d) That the Scrutiny Board (City and Regional Partnerships) consider a broader inquiry into the work and
positive achievements of Marketing Leeds; and
(e) That the draft funding agreement between Leeds City Council and Marketing Leeds for 2009/10 be brought
before the relevant Scrutiny Board for comment prior to agreement.

29 Outcome of Call-In

RESOLVED – That the report and information appended to the report be noted.

The Board then questioned Officers at length on the information provided and evidence submitted.

SCRUTINY BOARD (CITY & REGIONAL PARTNERSHIPS) OUTLINE WORK PROGRAMME (October) 2008 APPENDIX 1

This page is intentionally left blank

Page 46

Page 47

Review of the Council's
lettings policy
Approval of the revised
Lettings Policy. The lettings
policy is reviewed as part
of a continuous process
improvement, as a result of
consultation with
stakeholders including
Arms Length Management
Organisations, Registered
Social Landlords, voluntary
sector agencies and
customers.

Cemeteries and
Crematoria Fees and
Charges
To agree new fees and
charges for the Cemeteries
and Crematoria Service.

Key Decisions

Executive Board
(Portfolio:
Neighbourhoods
and Housing)

Chief Recreation
Officer

Decision Maker

8/10/08

1/10/08

Expected
Date of
Decision

Customers waiting to
be rehoused, Leeds
City Council tenants,
Arms Length
Management
Organisations, Belle
Isle Tenant
Management
Organisation,
Registered Social
Landlords, Leeds
Tenants’ Federation,
Legal Services,
Voluntary agencies

Executive Member for
Leisure

Proposed
Consultation

FORWARD PLAN OF KEY DECISIONS
For the period 1 October 2008 to 31 January 2009

LEEDS CITY COUNCIL

The report to be issued to
the decision maker with the
agenda for the meeting

Delegated Decision Report

Documents to be
Considered by Decision
Maker

Director of
Environment and
Neighbourhoods

Director of City
Development

Lead Officer
(To whom
representations should
be made)

Appendix 2

Page 48

Executive Board
(Portfolio: Children's
Services)

Executive Board
(Portfolio: Central
and Corporate)

Leeds by Example:
Developing a Corporate
Social Responsibility Policy
Approve the vision and
development of a
Corporate Social
Responsibility Policy.

Managing Pupil Numbers
at Swallow Hill Community
College
Approval of the strategy
proposed to manage the
excess in pupil numbers in
the existing Wortley High
School building, and
approval of the capital
injection of £1.19m to meet
the cost of required
refurbishment and ICT
works.

Executive Board
(Portfolio:
Development and
Regeneration)

Decision Maker

Pudsey Bus Station
Redevelopment
Approval to construct the
highway works associated
with the redevelopment of
Pudsey Bus Station

Key Decisions

8/10/08

8/10/08

8/10/08

Expected
Date of
Decision

School & Temporary
Governing Body

As this is a joint
LCC/Metro scheme,
joint consultation is
ongoing

Proposed
Consultation

The report to be issued to
the decision maker with the
agenda for the meeting

The report to be issued to
the decision maker with the
agenda for the meeting

The report to be issued to
the decision maker with the
agenda for the meeting

Documents to be
Considered by Decision
Maker

Chief Executive of
Education Leeds

Deputy Chief
Executive

Director of City
Development

Lead Officer
(To whom
representations should
be made)

Page 49

Executive Board
(Portfolio: Children's
Services)

Executive Board
(Portfolio: Children's
Services)

Roundhay Children's
Centre (DCR)
To inject £300K into the
Children’s Services Capital
Programme and give
authority to incur this
expenditure.

Executive Board
(Portfolio:
Development and
Regeneration)

Decision Maker

Richmond Hill and
Swillington Primary
Permission to consult on
rebuilding schools.

Sustainable Education
Travel Strategy
To note the contents of the
report and proposed
Sustainable Education
Travel Strategy and
associated Action Plan for
2008-09 and to approve
the Sustainable Education
Travel Strategy and
associated Action Plan for
2008-09 including options
for the Home to School
Transport Policy.

Key Decisions

8/10/08

8/10/08

8/10/08

Expected
Date of
Decision

Education Leeds,
Children’s Services,
Providers and
stakeholders city wide.

Consultation
September 2008

Extensive consultation
has been undertaken
with key stakeholders
and partners in the
education, transport,
health, children’s and
young services
sectors, and the
public.

Proposed
Consultation

The report to be issued to
the decision maker with the
agenda

The report to be issued to
the decision maker with the
agenda for the meeting

The report to be issued to
the decision maker with the
agenda for the meeting

Documents to be
Considered by Decision
Maker

Director of Children's
Services

Chief Executive of
Education Leeds

Director of City
Development

Lead Officer
(To whom
representations should
be made)

Page 50

Executive Board
(Portfolio:
Development and
Regeneration)

8/10/08

8/10/08

Executive Board
(Portfolio:
Children's Services)

The National Challenge
and Secondary Provision in
Central and East Leeds
Approval of structural
change required of the
Central Leeds Learning
Federation Schools and
Parklands as part of LCC
response to the DCSF for
the National Challenge.

Lands Lane and Central
Square Public Realm
Improvements
Approve scheme design
and cost

8/10/08

Executive Board
(Portfolio: Children's
Services)

Boston Spa Children's
Centre(DCR)
To inject £350K into the
Children’s Services Capital
Programme and give
authority to incur this
expenditure

Expected
Date of
Decision

Decision Maker

Key Decisions

Retailers /
stakeholders / Ward
Members / Lead
Member / Council
Officer through City
Centre Public Realm
Project Board

Formal consultation
following approval of
this report

Education Leeds,
Children’s Services,
Providers and
stakeholders city wide.

Proposed
Consultation

The report to be issued to
the decision maker with the
agenda for the meeting

The report to be issued to
the decision maker with the
agenda for the meeting

The report to be issued to
the decision maker with the
agenda

Documents to be
Considered by Decision
Maker

Director of City
Development

Chief Executive of
Education Leeds

Director of Children's
Services

Lead Officer
(To whom
representations should
be made)

Page 51

Decision Maker

Executive Board
(Portfolio: Leisure)

Executive Board
(Portfolio:
Neighbourhoods
and Housing)

Executive Board
(Portfolio:
Neighbourhoods
and Housing)

Executive Board
(Portfolio:
Neighbourhoods
and Housing)

Key Decisions

Garforth Library
Authority to spend the Big
Lottery grant for the
refurbishment of Garforth
Library.

RHB 2008-11 Programme
Beverleys Acquisition and
Demolition Scheme
Authority to spend from
Executive Board.

Assistance to Vulnerable
Households
Authority to spend from
Executive Board.

Leeds Private Sector
Housing Needs and Future
Investment Proposals
To approve the Leeds
Private Sector Housing
Needs and Future
Investment Proposals.

8/10/08

8/10/08

8/10/08

8/10/08

Expected
Date of
Decision

Documents to be
Considered by Decision
Maker

None

RHB Programme
Board

RHB Programme
Board

The report to be issued to
the decision maker with the
agenda for the meeting

The report to be issued to
the decision maker with the
agenda for the meeting

The report to be issued to
the decision maker with the
agenda for the meeting

Extensive consultation The report to be issued to
with the local
the decision maker with the
community. Local ward agenda for the meeting
members and
Executive Member
(Leisure)

Proposed
Consultation

Director of
Environment and
Neighbourhoods

Director of
Environment and
Neighbourhoods

Director of
Environment and
Neighbourhoods

Director of City
Development

Lead Officer
(To whom
representations should
be made)

Page 52

Executive Board
(Portfolio: Adult
Health and Social
Care)

Executive Board
(Portfolio: Children's
Services)

Catholic Care
To make a decision on the
future of the Catholic Care
Contract

Executive Board
(Portfolio:
Development and
Regeneration)

A639 Arla Landslip
To approve expenditure
necessary to make the
carriageway safe and keep
this important link open to
traffic.

Department of Health Extra
Care Housing Fund Bid:
2008-2010
To request that Executive
Board considers and
supports the proposal to
redevelop Hemingway
House in Hunslet, replacing
it with 45 units of Extra
Care Housing for older
people, in partnership with
MHA and the PCT.

Executive Board
(Portfolio: Central
and Corporate)

Decision Maker

Capital Programme Update
2008 to 2012
To approve the updated
capital programme
position.

Key Decisions

8/10/08

8/10/08

8/10/08

8/10/08

Expected
Date of
Decision

Extensive consultation
has already been
undertaken with key
stakeholders, Elected
Members and local
citizens.

N/A

None

Proposed
Consultation

The report to be issued to
the decision maker with the
agenda for the meeting

The report to be issued to
the decision maker with the
agenda for the meeting

The report to be issued to
the decision maker with the
agenda for the meeting

The report to be issued to
the decision maker with the
agenda for the meeting

Documents to be
Considered by Decision
Maker

Director of Children's
Services

Director of Adult Social
Services

Director of City
Development

Director of Resources

Lead Officer
(To whom
representations should
be made)

Page 53

Decision Maker

Executive Board
(Portfolio: Leisure)

Executive Board
(Portfolio:
Development and
Regeneration)

Key Decisions

The Government Offer in
respect of Free Swimming
for 60+ and the 16 and
Under
To approve the Council’s
participation in Pot 2 to
provide free swimming for
the U16s under the
Government scheme.

Leeds Town and District
Centres Programme Armley Town and District
Centre Regeneration
To approve the expenditure
for the Town and District
Centre Regeneration
scheme as supported by
Asset Management Group
(AMG).

8/10/08

8/10/08

Expected
Date of
Decision
Executive Members

Proposed
Consultation

The report to be issued to
the decision maker with the
agenda for the meeting

The report to be issued to
the decision maker with the
agenda for the meeting

Documents to be
Considered by Decision
Maker

Director of City
Development

Director of City
Development

Lead Officer
(To whom
representations should
be made)

Page 54

Request to enter into a
Service Level Agreement
with Adult Social Care for
the Provision of Supporting
People Services for People
with Learning Disabilities
Approval to enter into
Supporting People Service
Level Agreement with
Leeds City Council, Adult
Social Care Directorate for
a period of 3 + 1 years.

Home Energy
Conservation Act 12th
Report
Approval for release to
DEFRA, signing off by
Chief Officer prior to
release for the 14th
November deadline and for
information to the 5th
November 2008 Executive
Board.

Key Decisions

Director of
Environment and
Neighbourhoods

Director of
Environment and
Neighbourhoods

Decision Maker

3/11/08

31/10/08

Expected
Date of
Decision

N/A

N/A

Proposed
Consultation

Report and Options
Appraisal for the Delegated
Decision Panel

Report

Documents to be
Considered by Decision
Maker

Director of
Environment and
Neighbourhoods

Director of
Environment and
Neighbourhoods

Lead Officer
(To whom
representations should
be made)

Page 55

Chief Officer - Early
Years and Youth
Service

Chief Officer - Early
Years and Youth
Service

Junior Youth Inclusion
Projects
Contract acceptance

Director of
Environment and
Neighbourhoods

Decision Maker

Independent Advice and
Guidance
Contract Acceptance

Request to enter into a
Service Level Agreement
with Adult Social Care for
the Provision of Supporting
People Services for People
with Learning Disabilities
Approval to enter into
Supporting People Service
Level Agreement with
Leeds City Council, Adult
Social Care Directorate for
a period of 18+6 months.

Key Decisions

3/11/08

3/11/08

3/11/08

Expected
Date of
Decision

CPU

Corporate
Procurement Unit,
Joint Preventative
Commissioning Panel,
Joint Preventative
Partnership

N/A

Proposed
Consultation

None.

None.

Report and Options
Appraisal for the Delegated
Decision Panel

Documents to be
Considered by Decision
Maker

Director of Children's
Services

Director of Children's
Services

Director of
Environment and
Neighbourhoods

Lead Officer
(To whom
representations should
be made)

Page 56

Decision Maker

Chief Officer - Early
Years and Youth
Service

Executive Board
(Portfolio:
Neighbourhoods
and Housing)

Executive Board
(Portfolio:
Development and
Regeneration)

Key Decisions

Family Outreach Workers
(West)
To award the contract for
the above.

Area Delivery Plans for
2008/09
Endorsement of 10 Area
Delivery Plans

Street Design Guide
Approval of Supplementary
Planning Document

5/11/08

5/11/08

3/11/08

Expected
Date of
Decision

Already carried out

Elected Ward
Members, Area
Committees,
Regeneration
Management Teams

Procurements Unit,
Head of Children’s
Centre Services
(HoCCS), Children’s
Centre Managers
(West)

Proposed
Consultation

The report to be issued to
the decision maker with the
agenda for the meeting

The report to be issued to
the decision maker with the
agenda for the meeting

Tender evaluation
documents

Documents to be
Considered by Decision
Maker

Director of City
Development

Director of
Environment and
Neighbourhoods

Director of Children's
Services

Lead Officer
(To whom
representations should
be made)

Page 57

Decision Maker

Executive Board
(Portfolio: Leisure)

Executive Board
(Portfolio:
Development and
Regeneration)

Executive Board
(Portfolio: Children's
Services)

Key Decisions

Parks and Green Space
Strategy
To seek approval for the
publication of the Parks
and Green Space Strategy.

A653 Dewsbury Road Bus
Priority Measures, Ring
Road Beeston Park Bus
Land
Permission to construct the
scheme, subject to
satisfactory funding
arrangements being in
place on return of tenders.
The works are required to
provide a quality bus
corridor identified in the
LTP and are an intrinsic
part of the Yorkshire Bus
Initiative.

Leeds BSF Phase 2
Approval of the Final
Business Case in respect
of Crawshaw High School

5/11/08

5/11/08

5/11/08

Expected
Date of
Decision

Initial Member
consultation has taken
place.

Extensive consultation
has taken place
throughout the
development of the
strategy with a range
of stakeholders and
members.

Proposed
Consultation

The report to be issued to
the decision maker with the
agenda for the meeting

The report to be issued to
the decision maker with the
agenda for the meeting

The report to be issued to
the decision maker with the
agenda for the meeting

Documents to be
Considered by Decision
Maker

Deputy Chief
Executive

Director of City
Development

Director of City
Development

Lead Officer
(To whom
representations should
be made)

Page 58
5/11/08

Executive Board
(Portfolio: Children's
Services)

Merlyn Rees Youth Hub
Centre (DCR)
To inject £5million into the
Children’s Services Capital
Programme and give
authority to incur this
expenditure.

5/11/08

5/11/08

Executive Board
(Portfolio: Children's
Services)

Sharp Lane Primary
School- Creation of New
Entrance and Provision of
Remodelling Works
Approval to carry out
capital works, and incur
expenditure in relation to
the proposed scheme to
create a new school
entrance, and to carry out
remodelling works.

Expected
Date of
Decision

Shire Oak CE Primary
Executive Board
(Portfolio: Children's
School- Replacement
Classroom Accommodation Services)
Approval to carry out
capital works and incur
expenditure in relation to
the proposed scheme to
provide replacement
classroom accommodation

Decision Maker

Key Decisions

Education Leeds,
Children’s Services,
providers and
stakeholders city wide.

Proposed
Consultation

The report to be issued to
the decision maker with the
agenda

The report to be issued to
the decision maker with the
agenda for the meeting

The report to be issued to
the decision maker with the
agenda for the meeting

Documents to be
Considered by Decision
Maker

Director of Children's
Services

Chief Executive of
Education Leeds

Chief Executive of
Education Leeds

Lead Officer
(To whom
representations should
be made)

Page 59

Executive Board
(Portfolio: Central
and Corporate)

Executive Board
(Portfolio: Children's
Services)

Executive Board
(Portfolio: Leisure)

Memorandum of
Understanding
Accept a proposed
framework for agreeing a
Memorandum of
Understanding with any
sponsor of a prospective
Academy in Leeds.

Proposed Leeds Arena,
Selection of Preferred
Development Proposal
To select preferred
developer / development
process for the proposed
Leeds arena

Decision Maker

Financial Performance Half
Year 2008/09
In noting the financial
position at the half year for
the Authority a decision will
be required as to the
treatment of any variation
identified.

Key Decisions

5/11/08

5/11/08

5/11/08

Expected
Date of
Decision

Arena Project Board
and Yorkshire Forward

David Young
Community Academy,
Chamber of
Commerce, Learning
Skills Council,
Department for
Children, Schools &
Families.

Proposed
Consultation

The report to be issued to
the decision maker with the
agenda for the meeting

The report to be issued to
the decision maker with the
agenda for the meeting

The report to be issued to
the decision maker with the
agenda for the meeting

Documents to be
Considered by Decision
Maker

Director of City
Development

Chief Executive of
Education Leeds

Director of Resources

Lead Officer
(To whom
representations should
be made)

Page 60

5/11/08

Executive Board
(Portfolio:
Development and
Regeneration)

Chief Officer
(PPPU)

Leeds Town and District
Centres ProgrammeOakwood Phase 2 Town
and District Centre
To approve expenditure for
the Town and District
Centre Regeneration
Scheme as supported by
Asset Management Group
(AMG).

Framework Agreement for
Financial Advisors for PFI
Projects
To award the contract for
the Framework Agreement.

6/11/08

5/11/08

Expected
Date of
Decision

Executive Board
(Portfolio: Central
and Corporate)

Decision Maker

The Living City Wage
To consider the
implications of introducing
a Living Wage for Leeds.

Key Decisions

N/A (advisors from
client departments
consulted)

To consider matters
already nationally and
locally researched by
Living Wage
organisations.

Proposed
Consultation

Report to Panel

The report to be issued to
the decision maker with the
agenda for the meeting

The report to be issued to
the decision maker with the
agenda for the meeting

Documents to be
Considered by Decision
Maker

Deputy Chief
Executive

Director of
Environment and
Neighbourhoods

Director of Resources

Lead Officer
(To whom
representations should
be made)

Page 61

Executive Board
(Portfolio: Leisure)

Executive Board
(Portfolio: Children's
Services)

Clapgate Primary SchoolExtension works to form
two forms of entry school
Approval to carry out
capital works and incur
expenditure in relation to
the proposed scheme to
carry out extension works.

Executive Board
(Portfolio: Children's
Services)

Leeds BSF Phase 2
Approval of the Final
Business Case in respect
of Priesthorpe Specialist
Sports College.

City Centre Park
In principle support for the
development of a City
Centre Park.

Chief Highways
Officer

Decision Maker

Highways Maintenance
Projects estimated to cost
in excess of £5,000 for
inclusion in the Highway
Maintenance Capital
Programme 2009/2010.

Key Decisions

3/12/08

3/12/08

3/12/08

10/11/08

Expected
Date of
Decision

Clapgate Primary
School

Members, Officers,
CABE, Civic Trust

Each elected member
will be consulted on
the proposed streets in
their ward during
September 2008.

Proposed
Consultation

The report to be issued to
the decision maker with the
agenda for the meeting

The report to be issued to
the decision maker with the
agenda for the meeting

The report to be issued to
the decision maker with the
agenda for the meeting

Report to the Director of
City Development

Documents to be
Considered by Decision
Maker

Chief Executive of
Education Leeds

Director of City
Development

Deputy Chief
Executive

Chief Highways Officer

Lead Officer
(To whom
representations should
be made)

Page 62

Decision Maker

Executive Board
(Portfolio:
Children's Services)

Executive Board
(Portfolio: Children's
Services)

Executive Board
(Portfolio: Children's
Services)

Key Decisions

Windmill Primary School Extension Works to form
two forms of entry school
Approval to carry out
capital works and incur
expenditure in relation to
the proposed scheme to
carry out extension works.

South Leeds High School
Approve the proposal to
close South Leeds High
School and replace it with
an Academy to serve the
needs of children and
young people from the
Beeston & Holbeck, City &
Hunslet and Middleton
Park wards.

Intake High School Arts
College
Approve the proposal to
close Intake High School
and replace it with an
Academy to serve the
needs of children and
young people from the
Bramley and Stanningley
Ward.

3/12/08

3/12/08

3/12/08

Expected
Date of
Decision

Public consultation
including Ward
Councillors

Public consultation
including Ward
Councillors

Windmill Primary
School

Proposed
Consultation

The report to be issued to
the decision maker with the
agenda for the meeting

The report to be issued to
the decision maker with the
agenda for the meeting

The report to be issued to
the decision maker with the
agenda for the meeting

Documents to be
Considered by Decision
Maker

Chief Executive of
Education Leeds

Chief Executive of
Education Leeds

Chief Executive of
Education Leeds

Lead Officer
(To whom
representations should
be made)

Page 63

Executive Board
(Portfolio: Children's
Services)

Executive Board
(Portfolio: Children's
Services)

Commissioning on Post 16
Provision
Agree the principles
underpinning the Leeds
approach to the
commissioning of 14+
provision and recommend
that the LSC agree specific
proposals for the
commissioning of post 16
provision from September
2009.

Bankside- Provision of
Newly Built School
Give approval to incur
capital expenditure in
relation to the proposed
scheme to provide a new
build school at Bankside
Primary Schoo.

Decision Maker

Key Decisions

3/12/08

3/12/08

Expected
Date of
Decision

Consultations will
include public meeting
with Governors,
parents school users
and community in
attendance, full ward
councillor briefing, full
consultation with
governing body,
school users including
parents, pupils and
community users, and
other Council services.

School Governors,
secondary
Headteachers, FE
Colleges and LSC

Proposed
Consultation

The report to be issued to
the decision maker with the
agenda for the meeting

The report to be issued to
the decision maker with the
agenda for the meeting

Documents to be
Considered by Decision
Maker

Chief Executive of
Education Leeds

Chief Executive of
Education Leeds

Lead Officer
(To whom
representations should
be made)

Page 64

Leeds Flood Alleviation
Scheme: Design Guide &
Vision
To approve the Design
Guide and Vision

Leeds Town and District
Centres Programme Headingley Town Centre
Improvements
To approve expenditure for
the Headingley Town and
District Centre
Regeneration scheme as
supported by Asset
Management Group
(AMG).

Key Decisions

Executive Board
(Portfolio:
Development and
Regeneration)

Executive Board
(Portfolio:
Development and
Regeneration)

Decision Maker

3/12/08

3/12/08

Expected
Date of
Decision

There have been
consultations with
stakeholders and
internally. Joint public
consultations will be
held in November
2008.

Proposed
Consultation

The report to be issued to
the decision maker with the
agenda for the meeting

The report to be issued to
the decision maker with the
agenda for the meeting

Documents to be
Considered by Decision
Maker

Director of City
Development

Director of
Environment and
Neighbourhoods

Lead Officer
(To whom
representations should
be made)

Page 65

Executive Board
(Portfolio: Leisure)

Executive Board
(Portfolio: Leisure)

The City Varieties Music
Hall Refurbishment Project
Approve the incurring of
expenditure for the
proposed refurbishment

Head of ICT

Decision Maker

City Centre Swimming
To agree a capital
contribution to the
University of Leeds in
return for public swimming
access to their proposed
new pool.

The provision of a new
mobile and fixed voice and
data services contract
The tender is currently
being advertised and we
aim to be in position to
make a decision and award
in December 2008. The
new contract will need to
be in place for when the
current agreement with
Orange expires in March
2009.

Key Decisions

14/1/09

14/1/09

1/1/09

Expected
Date of
Decision

The Executive
Member for
Development and
Regeneration and the
Executive Member for
Leisure.

Proposed
Consultation

The report to be issued to
the decision maker with the
agenda for the meeting

The report to be issued to
the decision maker with the
agenda for the meeting

Tender pack / bids

Documents to be
Considered by Decision
Maker

Director of City
Development

Director of City
Development

Director of Resources

Lead Officer
(To whom
representations should
be made)

Page 66

Key Decisions

Decision Maker

Expected
Date of
Decision

Proposed
Consultation

Documents to be
Considered by Decision
Maker

Lead Officer
(To whom
representations should
be made)

Page 67
Councillor Stewart Golton
Councillor Richard Harker
Councillor Peter Harrand
Councillor Keith Wakefield
Councillor Robert Finnigan
Councillor Judith Blake

Children’s Services

Learning

Adult Health and Social Care

Leader of the Labour Group

Leader of the Morley Borough
Independent Group

Advisory Member

In cases where Key Decisions to be taken by the Executive Board are not included in the Plan, 5 days notice of the intention to take such
decisions will be given by way of the agenda for the Executive Board meeting.

Councillor John Procter

Councillor Steve Smith

Environmental Services

Leisure

Councillor Andrew Carter

Development and Regeneration

Councillor John Leslie Carter

Councillor Richard Brett

Central and Corporate

Neighbourhoods and Housing

Executive Member

Executive Board Portfolios

Key decisions are those executive decisions:
• which result in the authority incurring expenditure or making savings over £250,000 per annum, or
• are likely to have a significant effect on communities living or working in an area comprising two or more wards

NOTES

Decision Maker

Council

Council

Decisions

Budget

Council Plan

Council

Council

Council

Council

Children & Young
People’s Plan

Community Strategy

Council Business
Plan

Crime and Disorder
Reduction Strategy

Page 68

Expected Date
of Decision

Via Executive
Board

Via Executive
Board

Via Executive
Board

Via Executive
Board

Via Executive
Board

Proposed
Consultation
Via Executive
Board

Report to be issued to the
decision maker with the agenda
for the meeting

Report to be issued to the
decision maker with the agenda
for the meeting

Report to be issued to the
decision maker with the agenda
for the meeting

Report to be issued to the
decision maker with the agenda
for the meeting

Report to be issued to the
decision maker with the agenda
for the meeting

Documents to be considered
by Decision Maker
Report to be issued to the
decision maker with the agenda
for the meeting

BUDGET AND POLICY FRAMEWORK DECISIONS

LEEDS CITY COUNCIL

Lead Officer

Via Executive
Board

Via Executive
Board

Via Executive
Board

Via Executive
Board

Council

Council

Council

Council

Council

Council

Local Transport Plan

Plans and alterations
which together
comprise the
Development plan
Youth Justice Plan

Licensing Authority
Policy Statement

Leeds Strategic Plan

Safer Leeds
Partnership Plan
2008

Health and Wellbeing Council
Partnership Plan

Via Executive
Board

Via Executive
Board

Via Executive
Board

Council

Proposed
Consultation
Via Executive
Board

Development Plan
documents

Expected Date
of Decision

Decision Maker

Decisions

Page 69

Report to be issued to the
decision maker with the agenda
for the meeting

Report to be issued to the
decision maker with the agenda
for the meeting

Report to be issued to the
decision maker with the agenda
for the meeting

Report to be issued to the
decision maker with the agenda
for the meeting

Report to be issued to the
decision maker with the agenda
for the meeting

Report to be issued to the
decision maker with the agenda
for the meeting

Documents to be considered
by Decision Maker
Report to be issued to the
decision maker with the agenda
for the meeting
Report to be issued to the
decision maker with the agenda
for the meeting

Lead Officer

Council

Council

Council

Economic
Development
Strategy

Climate Change
Strategy

Leeds Housing
Strategy

Expected Date
of Decision

Via Executive
Board

Via Executive
Board

Proposed
Consultation
Via Executive
Board

Report to be issued to the
decision maker with the agenda
for the meeting

Report to be issued to the
decision maker with the agenda
for the meeting

Documents to be considered
by Decision Maker
Report to be issued to the
decision maker with the agenda
for the meeting

Lead Officer

Full Council ( a meeting of all Members of Council) are responsible for the adoption of the Budget and Policy Framework.

NOTES:
The Council’s Constitution, in Article 4, defines those plans and strategies which make up the Budget and Policy Framework. Details of the
consultation process are published in the Council’s Forward Plan as required under the Budget and Policy Framework.

Decision Maker

Decisions

Page 70

EXECUTIVE BOARD
WEDNESDAY, 8TH OCTOBER, 2008
PRESENT:

Councillor R Brett in the Chair
Councillors J L Carter, R Finnigan, S Golton,
R Harker, P Harrand, J Procter, S Smith,
K Wakefield and J Blake
Councillor

84

J Blake – Non-voting advisory member

Exclusion of the Public
RESOLVED – That the public be excluded from the meeting during
consideration of the following parts of the agenda designated exempt on the
grounds that it is likely, in view of the nature of the business to be transacted
or the nature of the proceedings, that if members of the public were present
there would be disclosure to them of exempt information so designated as
follows:(a)

Appendix A to the report referred to in minute 95 under the terms of
Access to Information Procedure Rule 10.4 (4) and (5) and on the
grounds that the public interest in maintaining the exemption outweighs
the public interest in disclosing the information because disclosure
would seriously prejudice the Council’s position in negotiations and
litigation in relation to current and future legal proceedings in the
employment tribunal. This could result in significant cost liability to the
Council which would have to be met from the public purse.

(b)

Appendix 1 to the report referred to in minute 104 under the terms of
Access to Information Procedure Rule 10.4 (3) and on the grounds that
the public interest in maintaining the exemption outweighs the public
interest in disclosing the information because publication could
prejudice the City Council’s financial interests in relation to
negotiations currently underway with private sector investors and
Yorkshire Forward.

CHILDREN'S SERVICES
85

Managing Pupil Numbers at the new Swallow Hill Community College
from 2009/10
The Chief Executive of Education Leeds submitted a report on proposals for
managing pupil numbers at the new Swallow Hill Community College when it
opens in September 2009 including the proposed provision of an annex on
the Wortley School site.
RESOLVED –
(a)
That the strategy proposed to accommodate the additional pupil
numbers be approved.
Draft minutes to be approved at the meeting
to be held on Wednesday, 5th November, 2008

Page 71

(b)

That the expenditure from the education capital programme for the
capital costs for establishment of the annex be supported.

(Under the provisions of Council Procedure Rule 16.5, Councillor Wakefield
required it to be recorded that he abstained from voting on this matter).
86

Sharp Lane Primary School - Creation of New Entrance and Provision of
Remodelling Works
The Chief Executive of Education Leeds submitted a report on proposals to
create a new entrance and undertake associated remodelling works at Sharp
Lane Primary School and to incur the necessary expenditure.
(a)
That the design proposals in respect of the scheme to create a new
entrance and undertake associated remodelling works at Sharp Lane
Primary School be approved.
(b)
That the injection of a Section 106 funding contribution, in the sum of
£2,866,204, into the approved Capital Programme be approved
(c)
That expenditure of £902,200 be authorised in respect of this scheme.

87

Report on the September 2008 Admission Round for Community and
Controlled Schools
The Chief Executive of Education Leeds submitted a report providing
statistical information on the September 2008 admission round for community
and controlled schools.
RESOLVED – That the report be noted.

88

The National Challenge and Structural Change to Secondary Provision
in Leeds
The Chief Executive of Education Leeds submitted a report on the context
and proposals for the next phase in developing secondary school provision in
Leeds with specific reference to the National Challenge response.
RESOLVED – That a review of provision in East and North East Leeds be
commenced by consulting with schools, ward members, young people and
communities and an options paper be brought to this Board later this year.
(Under the provisions of Council Procedure Rule 16.5 Councillor Wakefield
required it to be recorded that he abstained from voting on this matter).
LEISURE

89

Deputation to Council - Friends of Woodhouse Moor Regarding the
Provision of Park Wardens on Woodhouse Moor
The Director of City Development submitted a report responding to issues
raised in the deputation by the Friends of Woodhouse Moor to Council in July,
on proposed future capital investment, the current revenue situation and
measures taken in respect of anti-social behaviour and barbecues on
Woodhouse Moor.

Draft minutes to be approved at the meeting
to be held on Wednesday, 5th November, 2008

Page 72

(a)

(b)
(c)

90

That approval be given for the development of a fully funded bid to the
Heritage Lottery Fund Parks For People Programme to be brought
back to this Board for approval prior to submission.
That the work of the Woodhouse Moor Multi-Agency Forum approach
to tackle anti-social behaviour in the park be noted.
That the proposal to consult on the potential for a barbecue area in the
park be noted.

Garforth Library - Big Lottery Grant
The Director of City Development submitted a report on a proposal to develop
a new Library and One Stop Centre for Garforth and the surrounding area
following a successful bid to the Big Lottery Fund.
RESOLVED – That a fully funded injection of £1,334,900 into the 2008/11
Capital Programme be approved and that authority be given for expenditure of
£1,434,900 on this scheme.

91

The Government Offer in respect of Free Swimming for those 60 years
and over and the 16 years and under
The Director of City Development submitted a report on the response to the
Government’s offer of free swimming for the over 60s and on proposals in
respect of the offer in respect of under 16s.
In presenting the report the Executive Member (Leisure) corrected information
in table 1 therein with refernce to ‘Leeds Share’ in the right hand column by
replacing “£350,000” with “£347,272” and “£143k” with “£170,714”.
RESOLVED –
(a)
That it be noted that officers wrote to the Development of Culture,
Media and Sport by 15 September indicating acceptance of the offer
for free swimming for the over 60s (Pot 1).
(b)
That the Council’s participation in Pot 2 to provide free swimming for
the under 16s be approved and that a further report be brought back to
this Board to agree allocation of government capital provided as part of
the free swimming initiative.
(c)
That a further report be brought to this Board in 2010/11 reviewing the
free swimming scheme in light of the government funding available at
that time for the continuation of such a scheme.

92

New Leaf - Financial Close Position
The Director of City Development submitted a report providing an update on
the progress of the procurement through the Local Education Partnership
(LEP) of the New Leaf Leisure Centres in Armley and Morley and on the
financial position agreed at Financial and Contract Close, which took place on
7th August 2008.
RESOLVED – That the report be noted.
ADULT HEALTH AND SOCIAL CARE
Draft minutes to be approved at the meeting
to be held on Wednesday, 5th November, 2008

Page 73

93

Department of Health Extra Care Housing Fund Bid: 2008-2010
The Chief Officer Adult Social Care submitted a report on a proposal to
redevelop Hemingway House older persons residential home in Hunslet,
replacing it with 45 units of Extra Care Housing for older people, in
partnership with Methodist Homes Association and the Primary Care Trust.
RESOLVED –
(a)
That the proposal to develop 45 units of Extra Care Housing for older
people on the site of Hemingway House, in partnership with Methodist
Homes Association and the Primary Care Trust be approved.
(b)
That the sale of the land at Hemingway House at less than best value
to a value forgone of £225,000 be endorsed.

94

Putting People First: Vision and Commitment to the Transformation of
Adult Social Care
The Director of Adult Social Services submitted a report providing an update
on the work undertaken in Leeds to prepare for the personalisation agenda,
since the publication of the concordat “Putting People First” In December
2007.
RESOLVED –
(a)
That progress made in Leeds towards the development of a more
personalised system of social care through the Self Directed Support
project and other initiatives be noted.
(b)
That, acknowledging the scale and scope of the transformation agenda
and the challenge it presents, the approach taken in Leeds to deliver
successful change be endorsed.
(c)
That the direct engagement of elected members in these developments
be continued by the submission of further reports to this Board,
involvement in workshops, seminars, conferences and in the recently
established members’ forum.
(d)
That the Board notes the impact Self Directed Support will have on
existing service provision including directly provided services and
commissioned services in Leeds and the need to accelerate the
transformation of these services to meet the challenges and impact of
personalisation and customer choice.
(e)
That it be noted that progress and the pace of change regarding the
delivery of Personalisation in Leeds will be the subject of some detailed
feedback from the recent inspection of Older People’s Services.
(f)
That the Scrutiny Board (Health and Adult Social Care) be requested to
monitor progress of the personalisation agenda.
(Under the provisions of Council Procedure Rule 16.5, Councillor Wakefield
required it to be recorded that he abstained from voting on this matter).
CENTRAL AND CORPORATE

95

Pay and Grading Review (Including a response to the Deputation to
Council by GMB regarding the Current Dispute on Equal Pay)
Draft minutes to be approved at the meeting
to be held on Wednesday, 5th November, 2008

Page 74

The Director of Resources submitted a report providing an update on the Pay
and Grading Review and responding to the deputation from GMB to full
Council on the current dispute relating to Equal Pay.
Following consideration of the appendix to this report, designated as exempt
under Access to Information Procedure Rule 10.4 (4) and (5), which was
considered in private at the conclusion of the meeting it was
RESOLVED –
(a)
That the response to the GMB Deputation to Full Council on 2 July
2008 be noted.
(b)
That the progress regarding implementation of the new Pay and
Grading arrangements be noted.
96

Leeds Benefits Service Annual Report 2007/08
The Director of Resources submitted a report providing information on the
performance of Leeds Benefits Service during 2007/08 and on the main
issues facing the service over the forthcoming year.
RESOLVED – That the report be noted.

97

Capital Programme Update 2008 - 2012
The Director of Resources submitted a report providing an updated position
on the 2008-2012 Capital Programme.
RESOLVED –
(a)
That the adjustments to capital programme expenditure and resources
as detailed in Appendix A to the report be approved.
(b)
That the Strategic Development Fund be sub-divided into 3 investment
areas as set out in section 4 of the report.
(Under the provisions of Council Procedure Rule 16.5 Councillor Wakefield
required it to be recorded that he abstained from voting on this matter only in
relation to those matters relating to the ALMOs programme).

98

Leeds, by Example: Developing a Corporate Social Responsibility Policy
The Deputy Chief Executive submitted a report highlighting the progress
made in developing a Corporate Social Responsibility Policy for Leeds,
outlining current developments and seeking agreement of a programme of
work to enable the initiative to move forward.
RESOLVED – That the vision, definition and plans as set out in the report be
approved and that ongoing and piloted schemes currently under development
be noted.

99

Managed Print Service
The Head of ICT submitted a report on a proposed scheme to introduce a
managed print service across the Council.

Draft minutes to be approved at the meeting
to be held on Wednesday, 5th November, 2008

Page 75

RESOLVED – That approval be given to an injection of £1,835,000 into the
Capital Programme and that scheme expenditure in the same amount be
authorised.
100

Progress Report on the PPP / PFI Programme in Leeds
The Deputy Chief Executive submitted a report providing an update on the
Council’s PPP/PFI projects and programmes.
RESOLVED –
(a)
That the current status of PPP/PFI projects and programmes be noted
(b)
That approval be given to the completion and entry into all necessary
legal documentation in relation to the Design and Build contract for
Crawshaw High School.
(Councillor J L Carter declared a personal interest in this item as a member of
the West Yorkshire Police Authority).

101

Cohesion and Integration Priorities and Delivery Plan 2008-2011
The Assistant Chief Executive (Planning, Policy and Improvement) and
Director of Environment and Neighbourhoods submitted a joint report on the
development of the policy framework and strategic approach to cohesion in
Leeds, highlighting a new definition of cohesion and integration and on the
proposed cohesion and integration priorities 2008 – 2011 and delivery plan.
RESOLVED – That the report be noted and that the Cohesion and Integration
Priorities 2008-2011 and the Delivery Plan attached as appendix 1 to the
report be approved.
DEVELOPMENT AND REGENERATION

102

Pudsey Bus Station - Associated Highway Works
The Director of City Development submitted a report on the design and
implementation of the associated highway works required to accommodate
the redevelopment of Pudsey Bus Station.
(a)
That approval be given to the design and implementation of associated
highways works to the redevelopment of Pudsey Bus Station as set out
in the submitted report and on drawing HDC/298886/C06, at a total
cost of £766,750.
(b)
That authority be given to incur expenditure of £615,000 works and
£131,750 staff costs (£20,000 previously approved) which can be met
from the Integrated Transport Scheme 99609 within the approved
Capital Programme.
(c)
That it be noted that a separate report will be presented to the Chief
Highways Officer seeking approval for the advertising and sealing of
the associated Traffic Regulation Orders.

103

Sustainable Education Travel Strategy and the Development of an
Integrated School Transport Policy for Children's Services
Draft minutes to be approved at the meeting
to be held on Wednesday, 5th November, 2008

Page 76

The Director of City Development submitted a report on a proposed
Sustainable Education Travel Strategy for Leeds and on the ongoing
collaborative work between Education Leeds and Children and Young
People’s Social Care to develop and introduce a Children’s Services School
Transport Policy which encompasses all statutory demands.
RESOLVED –
(a)
That the adoption and publication of the Leeds Sustainable Education
Travel Strategy be approved.
(b)
That approval be given for the development of a Children’s Services
School Transport Policy and to the intention to integrate this with the
Leeds Sustainable Education Travel Strategy by September 2010.
104

Lands Lane and Central Square Refurbishment
The Director of City Development submitted a report on a proposal to spend a
designated sum from the Council’s Capital Programme in order to fund the
refurbishment of Lands Lane and Central Square.
Following consideration of Appendix 1 to the report, designated as exempt
under Access to Information Procedure Rule 10.4 (3), which was considered
in private at the conclusion of the meeting it was
RESOLVED –
(a)
That the scheme design as outlined in the report be approved.
(b)
That release of expenditure and authority to spend in respect of this
scheme be given in the terms detailed in the exempt appendix to the
report.

105

Town and District Centre Regeneration Scheme - Armley Town Street
The Director of Environment and Neighbourhoods submitted a report on a
proposal to spend £794,274 of Town and District Centre Regeneration Fund
monies to aid the regeneration of Armley’s Town Street.
RESOLVED –
(a)
That the project brief and scheme design as presented be approved.
(b)
That authority be given to spend £794,274 of capital expenditure from
the Town and District Regeneration scheme.

106

Proposed Lloyds TSB Takeover of Halifax Bank of Scotland
The Director of City Development submitted a report on potential implications
of the proposed takeover of Halifax Bank of Scotland by Lloyds TSB, and of
action proposed by the City Council and its partners.
RESOLVED –
(a)

That the proposed actions detailed in section 1 of the report be
endorsed and that a meeting with representation from all political
groups be convened in the near future to consider the ongoing situation
in this respect.
Draft minutes to be approved at the meeting
to be held on Wednesday, 5th November, 2008

Page 77

(b)

That a further report be brought to the next meeting of this Board.

NEIGHBOURHOODS AND HOUSING
107

Deputation to Council - Designated Public Places Order Consultative
Committee Regarding the Designated Public Places Order Proposed for
Hyde Park and Woodhouse
The Director of Environment and Neighbourhoods submitted a report
responding to the deputation from the Designated public Places Order
Consultative Committee to Full Council on the Designated Public Places
Order Proposed for Hyde Park and Woodhouse.
RESOLVED – That approval be given to the approach of creating two
DPPO’s covering Little London and Little Woodhouse immediately with
consultation for a further DPPO to cover Woodhouse Moor and nearby
residential areas and greenspaces to be started in October.

108

Environment and Neighbourhoods Lettings Policy Revision
The Director of Environment and Neighbourhoods submitted a report on a
proposal to implement a revised version of the Council’s lettings policy from
Wednesday 22nd October 2008.
RESOLVED –
(a)
That the implementation of the revised lettings policy with effect from
22nd October 2008 be approved.
(b)
That the submitted report be used as the basis for a briefing document
for all Members of Council.

109

Update report on the Regeneration of 'The Beverleys' Area of Beeston
The Director of Environment and Neighbourhoods submitted a report
providing an update on the progress of the Beverleys acquisition and
demolition scheme and on the proposed expenditure to undertake the
scheme.
RESOLVED –
(a)
That approval be given to the injection of additional private sector
resources of £156,000 received from Beeston Group Repair Phase 2
additional to those previously accounted for within this group repair
scheme.
(b)
That Scheme Expenditure to the amount of £2,952,700 be authorised .
(c)
That officers report back in future on the progress of the scheme.

110

Assistance to Vulnerable Households
The Director of Environment and Neighbourhoods submitted a report
providing an update on the progress made in relation to the Assistance to
Vulnerable Households scheme and of Regional Housing Board funding for
the 2008-2011 programme.
RESOLVED –
Draft minutes to be approved at the meeting
to be held on Wednesday, 5th November, 2008

Page 78

(a)

111

That scheme expenditure of £1,800,000 fully funded through Regional
Housing Board grant for the three year 2008-2011 programme be
authorised and that a report on progress of the Scheme be brought
back to this Board.

Policing Green Paper - From the Neighbourhood to the National:
Policing Our Communities Together
The Director of Environment and Neighbourhoods submitted a report
commenting on the government green paper and outlining concerns with
some of the key proposals.
RESOLVED – That the submitted report together with the resolution of the
Local Government Association and Association of Police Authorities on the
same subject be approved as the formal response of this Council to the
Government’s Policing Green Paper: From the Neighbourhood to the
National: Policing our Communities Together and that the submission be
made under cover of a letter from the Safer Leeds Partnership.

DATE OF PUBLICATION
LAST DATE FOR CALL IN

10th October 2008
17th October 2008 (5.00 pm)

(Scrutiny Support will notify Directors of any items Called In by 12.00 noon on
Monday 20th October 2008).

Draft minutes to be approved at the meeting
to be held on Wednesday, 5th November, 2008

Page 79

This page is intentionally left blank

Page 80

